

# American Association of University Women of the State of California, Inc.

# POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

April 2023

#### Table of Contents

Introduction	5
100 – Purpose	6
Policy 101 – Purpose	6
Policy 102 – Use of Name	7
Policy 103 – State Projects	8
Policy 104 – Strategic Plan	11
Policy 105 – Resolutions	12
200 - Membership	14
Policy 201 – Membership Categories and Dues	14
Policy 202 – Suspension or Termination of Membership	16
Policy 203 – Release of Member Information to Third Parties	18
300 - Administration	21
Policy 301 – Board of Directors Composition, Responsibilities, and Powers	21
Policy 302 – Officers of the Corporation	25
Policy 303 – President	26
Policy 304 – President-Elect	29
Policy 305 – Vice President	30
Policy 306 – Chief Financial Officer	31
Policy 307 – Secretary	33
Policy 308 – Executive Committee	34
Policy 309 – Parliamentarian	35
Policy 310 – Assistant to the President	37
Policy 311 - Policies for Co-Officer Positions	38
Policy 312 – Resignations/Removals and Filling Vacancies on the Board of Directors	39
Policy 313 – Conflict of Interest	40
Policy 314 - Meetings Planner	100
Policy 315 – Annual Event Chair	102
400 - Operations	104
Policy 401 – Board Meetings	104
Policy 402 – Executive Committee Meetings	107
Policy 403 - Office and Office Manager	109
Policy 404 – Equipment	110
Policy 405 – Interbranch Councils (IBCs)	112
Policy 406 - Scheduling of AAUW Events	114
Policy 407 - AAUW Endorsement of Political Candidate(s)	115

500 - Finance	116
Policy 501 - Operations Fund Budget	116
Policy 502 - Bank Accounts	117
Policy 503—Investment Policy: Definition of Accounts	119
Policy 504 – AAUW Fund Assessment	126
Policy 505 – Insurance and Risk Management	127
Policy 506 – Reimbursement Procedures	129
Policy 507 – Fundraising Guidelines	135
Policy 508 – Outside Funding	136
Policy 509 – Annual Report and Disclosures	137
600 – Annual Event	138
Policy 601 – Annual Event (If an Annual Meeting)	138
Policy 602 – Annual Event (If a Convention)	139
700 - Communications	143
Policy 701 – Publications	143
Policy 702 – Website Usage and Internet Guidelines	146
800 – Nominations and Elections	150
Policy 801 – Nominations to State Board	150
Policy 802 – Campaign Rules for Candidates	153
Policy 803 - Candidate Campaign Finances Guidelines	156
Policy 804 - Ballot Measures	157
Policy 805 - Election Guidelines	159
900 - Committees	162
Policy 901 – Committees, Appointments and Chairs	162
Policy 903 – AAUW Fund Committee	167
Policy 905 - Branch Activity of the Year Award Committee	170
Policy 907 – Branch Support Committee	171
Policy 909 – Communications Committee	177
Policy 911 - College/University Partners Committee	182
Policy 913 – Diversity, Equity, Inclusion (DEI) Committee	184
Policy 915 – Finance Committee	186
Policy 917 – Governance Committee	190
Policy 919 – Gov Trek Committee	193
Policy 921 – Internal Audit Committee	197
Policy 923 – Leadership Development Committee	199
Policy 925 – Marketing Committee	200
Policy 927 – Membership Committee	201

Policy 931 – Program Committee	203
Policy 933 – Project Oversight Committee	205
Policy 935 – Public Policy Committee	207
Policy 937 – Speech Trek Committee	211
Policy 939 - Tech Trek Committee	212

#### Introduction

The AAUW California Policies and Procedures govern the day-to-day operations and administration of the state organization. This includes branch activities associated with statewide activities and projects. The policies define decisions made by the AAUW California governing body over time. The procedures describe the steps to be taken to carry out the policies.

The AAUW California Policies and Procedures are to be used in conjunction with the AAUW California Bylaws, the primary governing document of the corporation. At no time can the policies and procedures be in conflict with the national AAUW Bylaws or public policy program, or the AAUW California bylaws or public policy priorities.

The policies and procedures are reviewed regularly and updated as needed to reflect current operations and business practices of the corporation. The date on the cover of the document reflects the most recent full review and revision date. Archived versions of this document with a history of approved amendments and dates are housed on the AAUW California Google Drive.

These policies and procedures may be amended, suspended (for a specific purpose and time frame), or rescinded by a majority vote of the board of directors.

The format used for these policies and procedures is "information mapping" which allows for easy reference and readability. Each policy section is sub-numbered for easy reference. These policies and procedures are exclusively for the use of AAUW California.

AAUW California Governance Committee

#### 100 – Purpose

Policy 101 – Purpose

101.1 AAUW California Purpose	The purpose of AAUW California is to advance the mission of AAUW National, our parent organization.	
101.2 AAUW California Mission	AAUW California facilitates California branches in meeting the vision and mission of AAUW by providing programs, education, and resources.	
101.3 Principles and Priorities	The principles and priorities established by the national AAUW Board of Directors, as expressed in its policies, provide the framework for the work of AAUW California and the branches within the state.	
101.4 Assist Branches	<ul> <li>AAUW California shall:</li> <li>Assist the development of new branches of AAUW National within the state.</li> <li>Promote, encourage, and coordinate the work of the branches throughout the state.</li> <li>Cooperate with AAUW National.</li> </ul>	

# Policy 102 – Use of Name

102.1 Use of Name Policy	In accordance with AAUW policy titled Use of Name and Logo, the policies and program of AAUW shall be binding on all members, and no member shall use the name of AAUW to oppose such policies or program, or in response to a matter on which AAUW has no policy. Channels established by national AAUW may be used to change or create a policy or program.	
102.2 Freedom of Speech	The freedom of speech of the individual member to speak an opinion in the member's own name is not abridged. However, reference to membership in AAUW by an individual shall be interpreted as use of AAUW's name.	
102.3 Violation Results	<ul> <li>Violation of AAUW's policy titled Use of Name and Logo will be referred to national AAUW, with the following possible results:</li> <li>1. A member's suspension for one year or expulsion from membership.</li> <li>2. Loss of recognition of a branch or AAUW California.</li> </ul>	

#### Policy 103 – State Projects

103.1 State Projects - Overview	<ul> <li>AAUW California may establish special state-wide projects that have specific goals or objectives, may be adopted at the branch level, and are not addressed elsewhere within the current AAUW California program. These projects are established with the approval of the board of directors to support the AAUW mission. Specifically excluded are projects that support partisan candidates for office or are of benefit solely to AAUW members or individuals.</li> <li>Any state project endorsed by the board of directors shall have a program director, appointed by the president with Executive Committee approval.</li> <li>Current state projects are: Tech Trek and Speech Trek</li> </ul>	
103.1.1 Budget	The board must approve the annual budget for each project. If any AAUW member receives compensation and/or stipends from a state project, a listing of the members with dollar amounts shall be submitted to the Executive Committee for approval with the proposed budget.	
	An ongoing project must be self-funded, not requiring support from the AAUW California operating budget by the end of the second year. If outside funding sources and/or fees are inadequate to continue its operation, the project shall be discontinued.	
	The president shall sign all contracts and the CFO shall sign all vouchers that exceed budgeted amounts.	
103.1.2 Insurance	State projects are covered by the insurance package. However, the project is responsible for obtaining and paying for any riders and rider premiums, for complying with any Sexual Abuse Victim Awareness training required by the insurers or others, and for satisfying any other matters as required by law.	
103.1.2.1 Anti-Bullying Procedure	All state projects that include youth participants shall include an Anti Bullying procedure that requires volunteers who work with youth more than 16 hours in a month or 32 hours in a year to review and agree to abide by the procedure. The procedure must be presented to volunteers when they submit an application. The volunteers must acknowledge they have read the procedure and agree to abide by the rules.	

103.1.3 Establishing New Projects	A formal proposal for a new state project may be presented to the board of directors for approval. At the board's discretion, a pilot state project may receive seed funding for one fiscal year, continuing into a second year if reasonable progress toward stated goals can be shown. No incomplete project shall receive funding for a third year.
103.1.4 Establishing New Projects -	A proposal for a new project must be submitted to the board for each proposal requesting to be approved as an AAUW California project. The proposal must include the following:
Proposal Details	<ul> <li>The goal or purpose of the project and expected outcomes</li> </ul>
	A description of the project
	<ul> <li>Information on who it will serve</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>A proposed budget detailing revenue and expenses</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>The number of members and community partners involved</li> </ul>
103.1.5 Establishing New	The board will evaluate the proposal and determine eligibility based upon the following minimum criteria:
Projects - Proposal Review	Its relationship to AAUW California's mission, purpose and priorities
	<ul> <li>Proposed goals, objectives and timeliness</li> </ul>
	Action plan and time frame
	Budget and evaluation procedures
	Project applicants are strongly encouraged to apply to the Special
	Project Fund (SPF) board for approval to use the SPF for handling of tax- deductible contributions for the project.
103.2 State Program Director- Duties	A state program director may serve no more than five consecutive, one- year terms. The term of office shall encompass the project's fiscal year. The director's duties are to:
	<ul> <li>Implement the approved project, monitor its progress, keep the board apprised of the progress of the project, and ensure that all insurance, risk management, and legal requirements of a project are met.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Consult with key project personnel and assist them in implementation of the state project at the local or regional level.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Coordinate procurement of common materials and supplies for all regional or local projects (e.g. insurance riders, T-shirts, brochures, etc.).</li> </ul>

<ul> <li>Act as a liaison on project issues and questions between the key project personnel and state leadership.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Meet annually with project managers to help set goals and plans for the project.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Ensure that key project personnel submit timely reports, both programmatic and financial, annually or at the close of the project.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Consult with the board on issues specific to the project, and provide all records or communications required to conduct procedural and financial audits.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Make an annual report to the board at the close of the program year, which shall include a financial statement showing actual expenditures in comparison to the budget.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Ensure sound fiscal management of the project, including detailed budgeting and solicitation of contributions, donations and grants. (See also Policy 508Outside Funding.)</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>May authorize vouchers for budgeted amounts. Vouchers for amounts which vary from the budget must be signed by the CFO.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>If the same person occupies the roles required to authorize expenditures, the CFO signs all vouchers where a second signature is required as per AAUW California policies.</li> </ul>
• Perform such other duties as requested by the president.

#### Policy 104 – Strategic Plan

104.1 Strategic Plan - Overview	<ul> <li>AAUW California shall have a strategic plan.</li> <li>It shall be based on the AAUW mission and vision for AAUW in California.</li> <li>It shall include statements of goals and measurable objectives.</li> <li>It shall be for a specific period (e.g., two years).</li> </ul>	
104.2 Responsibility	The board of directors has overall responsibility for the development and implementation of the strategic plan. A special committee of the board may be appointed by the president to develop the strategic plan. The plan shall be adopted by a vote of the full board at a regularly	
104.3 Reporting	scheduled board meeting and implemented as adopted. Progress on implementing the plan will be reported to the membership annually. The board shall review and update or revise the plan annually. The board shall encourage branches to adopt strategic plans.	

# Policy 105 – Resolutions

105.1 Purpose and Scope of Resolutions	<ul> <li>The purpose and scope of resolutions are:</li> <li>Resolutions are the formal channel through which statements of belief, goals, and principles for which AAUW California stands can be expressed.</li> <li>Resolutions may focus, develop and give direction to AAUW program and policy and should be the outgrowth of study/action by the membership.</li> <li>Resolutions may be proposed by any member or branch and are adopted by the members by vote in state elections.</li> <li>Resolutions assist in communicating AAUW California's priorities to the public.</li> <li>Resolutions may establish a framework within which action may be taken.</li> <li>Resolutions are intended for temporary action within a specific time frame.</li> </ul>	
105.2 Resolutions Procedures	These are the steps	to follow when proposing resolutions:
	Parliamentarian	<ol> <li>Prepares the call for proposed resolutions to be included in the administrative packet, including:         <ul> <li>a. The date by which proposed resolutions must be received by the parliamentarian for consideration.</li> <li>b. The need to identify financial implications and time determinations, if any.</li> <li>c. The correct form in which the resolutions should be written and submitted to the parliamentarian for review and approval.</li> </ul> </li> </ol>
	President	<ol> <li>Appoints a resolutions task force to review and approve the resolution, if a proposed resolution is received by the deadline. The task force may be convened and led by the parliamentarian.</li> </ol>
	Task Force	<ul> <li>3. Reviews the resolution, in consultation with appropriate standing committees, and requests the CFO prepare a fiscal impact statement.</li> <li>The task force has the authority to: <ul> <li>a. Determine the adequacy and appropriateness of the proposed resolution.</li> <li>b. Eliminate duplication when similar resolutions are submitted.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>c. Put proposed resolutions in correct parliamentary form.</li> <li>d. Suggest compromises to make proposed resolutions more useful and acceptable.</li> <li>4. Notify the proposed resolutions authors of the committee's approval or rejection with reasons for action on each proposed resolution.</li> <li>5. Submit approved proposed resolutions to the Nominations/Elections Committee chair by the designated deadlines to be included in all state publications along with all other election materials, and to appear on the state ballot for member vote of approval.</li> </ul>
Members	Receive an online forum for discussing resolutions, beginning in March and continuing until the close of voting. <u>Note</u> : If logistically possible, a discussion of resolutions is presented immediately before or after the annual event business session.

#### 200 - Membership

#### Policy 201 – Membership Categories and Dues

201.1 Membership Categories - Eligibility	AAUW membership eligibility is established by national AAUW's bylaws and Policy 200 (Membership Eligibility and Categories).	
201.2 Membership Categories	There are seven (7) major membership categories and two subgroups in AAUW. The following table lists and describes each one.	
	Category	Description
	Branch Member	An AAUW member in good standing who has paid national, state and branch dues.
	Dual Branch Member	An AAUW member who has membership in multiple branches.
		National and state AAUW membership is recorded and dues paid through only one branch, which is considered the member's primary branch. Local dues are then paid to each branch to which the member is a dual member.
		If a member's primary branch is in another state, the member must pay AAUW California state dues to become a dual member of a California branch. The member can pay the AAUW California state dues at the time local California branch dues are paid.
	AAUW California State Member	An AAUW member in good standing who has paid AAUW California dues but is not a member of a California branch.
	50-Year Honorary Member	An AAUW member in good standing who has been certified by the national organization that they have been a member of AAUW for a period of 50 years or longer, and therefore exempt from paying national or state dues.

	1	
	Life Member	An AAUW member who has paid life dues to national AAUW. Life members who wish to be a member of a California branch or AAUW California state member
		must pay applicable state and branch dues.
	College/University Partner Member	College/university partner members are qualified educational institutions, including two-year or community colleges, that pay annual dues to AAUW.
		Each college/university member shall appoint one or two representatives who shall each have the membership benefits of a national member and any other benefits that accrue to representatives of partner members.
		A representative of a college/university partner member may join AAUW California with the same rights and benefits as an individual member.
	Membership dues f	or AAUW California are \$20.
	AAUW California Membership dues begin on July 1 to June 30. New members may join any time, but there is no half-year discount of state dues for members who join in the middle of the membership year.	
	The membership of June 30 of the follo	new members who join after March 15 is valid through wing year.
201.3 AAUW California Dues - Other	AAUW California membership dues can vary according to these conditions: 1. 50-Year Honorary Members (see 201.2, above) are exempt from paying	
	state dues.	e waived for past state presidents.
	3. State dues will b	e waived for college/university partner representatives.
	-	raduate students will be half the state dues. s pay one-half the annual AAUW California fee for
	affiliation with A	AUW California.
	6. State student af	filiate fees are waived for e-student affiliates.

#### Policy 202 – Suspension or Termination of Membership

202.1 Termination of Membership	<ul> <li>Membership in AAUW California shall terminate on the occurrence of any of the following events:</li> <li>1. Resignation of a member upon notice to the corporation</li> <li>2. Failure of a member to pay any dues or assessments within the period fixed by the board or branch after they become due and payable</li> <li>3. Expulsion of membership as described in this policy</li> </ul>		
202.2 Suspension or Expulsion of Membership	<ul> <li>The following are conditions for suspension or expulsion:</li> <li>1. Any AAUW California voting member may be suspended or expelled based on the good faith determination by the board, or a committee authorized by the board to make such a determination, that the member has failed in a material and serious degree to comply with the articles of incorporation, bylaws, code of ethics if any, or policy of the corporation or of AAUW, or with any law applicable to the corporation and its members, or has engaged in conduct materially and seriously prejudicial to the purposes and interests of the corporation.</li> <li>2. A person whose membership is suspended shall not be a member in good standing during the period of suspension.</li> <li>3. All rights of a member of the corporation shall cease upon suspension or expulsion from membership. In the case of expulsion, the member's membership in the corporation shall terminate on the effective date of the expulsion. However, suspension or expulsion shall not relieve the member (or former member) of any existing obligations to the corporation.</li> </ul>		
202.3 Procedure for Suspension or Expulsion	If grounds appear to exist for suspension or expulsion of a member pursuant to this policy the following procedures will be used:		
202.4 Procedure for Suspension or Expulsion	Step/Action 1. Give the member 15 days prior notice of the proposed suspension or expulsion and the reasons for the proposed suspension or expulsion.	<ul> <li>Details</li> <li>Notice shall be given by any method reasonably calculated to provide actual notice.</li> <li>Any notice given by mail shall be sent first class or express mail to the</li> </ul>	

	<ul> <li>member's last address as shown on the corporation's records.</li> <li>Facsimile or electronic mail may be used for this notice if the member has consented to such methods of notice and if the corporation reasonably believes that the member will receive the notice.</li> </ul>
2. The member shall be given an opportunity to be heard, either orally or in writing, at least five days before the effective date of the proposed suspension or expulsion.	<ul> <li>The hearing shall be held, or the written statement considered by the board or by a committee authorized by the board to determine whether the suspension or expulsion should take place.</li> </ul>
<ol> <li>Decide (the board or authorized committee) whether the member should be suspended, expelled or sanctioned in some other way.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>The decision of the board or committee shall be final.</li> </ul>
<ol> <li>Notify the person whose membership is suspended that the member is no longer in good standing during the period of suspension.</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>Use the same procedures for notification as stated under #1.</li> </ul>
5. Inform the member that any action s/he takes to challenge a suspension or expulsion of membership, including a claim alleging defective notice, must be received by the corporation within one year after the effective date of the suspension or expulsion.	<ul> <li>Use the same procedures for notification as stated under #1.</li> </ul>

#### Policy 203 – Release of Member Information to Third Parties

203.1 Members Personal Information - Confidentiality	Personal information about AAUW California members is confidential and subject to use of name constraints. Phone numbers and other contact information may be released only to coalitions of which AAUW California is a member. The president and at least one other director must both give approval for such a release. Branches wishing to release information about their members must adopt a release of member information policy. Branch counterpart phone numbers and other contact information may be released.
203.2 State Directory	<ul> <li>AAUW California office annually compiles a directory of state and branch leaders from information submitted by the branches and state leadership team. (See current AAUW California Directory available online.)</li> <li>Distribution guidelines are that:</li> <li>The directory is for the internal use of the membership and leaders.</li> <li>It must not be distributed or copied for any outside organization without written permission of the president.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Requests for permission of the president.</li> <li>Requests for permission to use parts of the directory for a one-time informational mailing must be made in written format to the state office and approved by the president.</li> <li>Use of the directory for any purpose that conflicts with adopted AAUW positions shall be considered misuse of name.</li> </ul>
203.3 Reporting Requirements	<ul> <li>The reporting requirements are as follows:</li> <li>AAUW California will comply with all legal and other reporting requirements.</li> <li>Information requests and other requirements imposed by AAUW California insurance carriers as conditions of coverage and by government agencies responsible for non-profit organizations will be satisfied.</li> <li>All required legal forms and information for/about office staff will be filed in accordance with state and federal laws.</li> <li>Donations made to AAUW Fund will be handled in accordance with all applicable IRS guidelines.</li> </ul>

203.4 Mailing Lists and Labels - Guidelines	<ul> <li>Mailing lists are made available for internal use by authorized AAUW users as allowed by policy and upon request to webteam@aauw-ca.org.</li> <li>Mailing lists may be made available for one time use to outside organizations whose goals, purposes and policies are compatible with those of AAUW.</li> <li>Mailing lists may be given or sold to an organization after a written request that details the purpose and content of the mailing is made to the state office, reviewed by the state president and at least one other member of the Executive Committee and is approved by the president and the member of the Executive Committee reviewing the request.</li> <li>Requests for mailing lists that do not meet AAUW standards or these policies shall be rejected.</li> <li>The fee, if any, for providing mailing lists and labels shall be set by the Finance Committee.</li> <li>Specific requests that the mailing list be produced as printed labels will be reviewed for feasibility.</li> </ul>
203.4.1 Organization Purchase of Mailing Lists	<ul> <li>The mailing lists will be available for purchase by magazines, direct mail advertisers and other potential revenue sources within the following limits:</li> <li>The publication or product must not be detrimental to women or society in general.</li> <li>The publication or advertiser must not promote societal conditions or political programs detrimental to women.</li> <li>The purchase of the mailing list by an advertiser does not constitute an endorsement of the product.</li> </ul>
203.4.2 Individual Purchase of Mailing Lists	<ul> <li>The mailing lists will be available for purchase by individuals as follows:</li> <li>For educational purposes providing the research or project is compatible with AAUW goals, purposes and policies. A synopsis of the project must be submitted to the president for review along with the request. The individual must agree to any additional conditions requested by the president.</li> <li>For campaign purposes when seeking national AAUW elected office. (See Policy 800 on Elections concerning mailing lists for campaigns for state elections.)</li> <li>For other purposes subject to these general guidelines and to any additional conditions requested by the president by the president.</li> </ul>

203.4.3 Public Office Purchase of Mailing Lists	Mailing lists and labels will not be made available to candidates for public office.
203.4.4 Mailing List Contents	The mailing list consists of information compiled from the state directory as submitted by branches and state leadership team, excepting those who have asked to have names removed.
	A member may, at any time, remove her/his name from the mailing list. College/university partners will automatically be excluded from the list.

#### 300 - Administration

Policy 301 – Board of Directors Composition, Responsibilities, and Powers

301.1 Composition of Board of Directors	The board shall have eleven (11) directors, consisting of the elected officers and such number of additional directors (general directors) as is necessary for the board to have 11 directors. The voting members of AAUW California shall elect the general directors statewide. Additionally, the board may appoint a parliamentarian who shall serve as a consultant to the board and to the Executive Committee. Every director must be a voting member of AAUW California in good standing.
301.2 Terms and Election Cycle	Officers and directors' terms are two (2) years, except the President-Elect who serves a one-year term prior to becoming president. The members will elect a one-year director position in even years to serve opposite the president-elect position which is elected in odd years to balance out the ongoing annual board election requirements. Candidates will indicate their preferred term on their application, which will include an option for No Preference, in which case the term will be determined prior to the election by the Nominations and Elections committee based on the needs of the slate.
301.3 Powers of Board of Directors	<ul> <li>The board shall exercise all powers of the corporation and is subject to the following:</li> <li>Restrictions of law</li> <li>The Articles of Incorporation</li> <li>Bylaws</li> <li>Policies of AAUW</li> </ul>

Subject Areas of	Without limitation on its general power, except as specified in the following, the board may do the following:	
Power	Subject area	What the board can do
	Policies	Adopt policies, rules and procedures for the management and operation of the corporation.
	Administration	Employ or retain an individual or management firm to administer the day- to-day activities of the corporation. If an individual is retained for such purpose, he or she shall not be a director on the board and may be known a the Office Manager. The board may also employ, retain, or authorize the employment of such other employees, independent contractors, agents, accountants, and legal counsel, as it from time to time deems necessary or advisable, in the interest of the corporation, and prescribe their duties ar fix their compensation.
	Bonds	Requires officers, agents, and employees charged by the corporation with responsibility for the custody of any of its funds or negotiable instruments to give adequate bond.
	Borrowing money	Borrow money and incur indebtedness on behalf of the corporation and cause to be executed and delivered for the corporation's purposes, in the corporation name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, liens, and other evidences of debt and securities.
	Gifts	Receive and accept gifts, devises, bequests, donations, annuities, and endorsements of real and personal property, and use, hold and enjoy the same, both as to principal and income, and to invest and reinvest the sam or any part thereof for the furtherance of any objects, interests or purposes of this corporation.
	Contributions	Make such contributions as the board determines are necessary and advisable in furtherance of the interests and purposes of this corporation.

	Seal	Adopt and use a corporate seal provided that the name of the corporation and the state are shown on it. The seal may be affixed to such instruments as the board shall direct. However, the lack of a corporate seal shall not, by itself, affect the legality of any document execute on behalf of the corporation.
	Contracts	Enter into contracts and agreements with individuals and with public and private entities for the advancement of the purposes for which the corporation is organized.
301.3.2 Responsibilities	<ul> <li>quarterly), the and Committee</li> <li>Stay updated or communication</li> <li>Prepare for boar meeting.</li> <li>Submit suggest using the online Policies and Process and Process</li></ul>	f the annual AAUW California budget, using the strategic de budget priorities n advance, of all state fundraising activities per

301.3.3 Ensure Financial Health	<ul> <li>Directors ensure the financial health of the organization. They:</li> <li>Contribute to the preparation of the annual budget using the strategic plan to guide priorities.</li> <li>Review quarterly financial reporting prepared by the CFO and evaluate performance against budget.</li> <li>Biennially review, in consultation with the Finance Committee, the state dues and recommend changes if needed.</li> </ul>
301.3.4 Chair or Co-Chair	<ul> <li>Works with committee members to plan and implement initiatives to meet committee goals as established by the board of directors and strategic plan.</li> <li>Prepares committee budgets for use in building the overall annual AAUW California budget.</li> </ul>
301.3.5 Maintains Communication	<ul> <li>Directors maintain regular and ongoing communications. They:</li> <li>Maintain timely and responsive communications with other directors, committee chairs, branch leaders, and AAUW members.</li> <li>Submit articles and updates as appropriate to the Board to Board enewsletter (distributed monthly) and/or the California Connection e-newsletter for members or other publications.</li> <li>Provide information to the AAUW Communications Committee to keep the website and other media updated with current information.</li> <li>Prepare a report of committee activities and strategic plan updates for the scheduled board of directors' packet and meeting.</li> <li>Contribute to social media postings as appropriate.</li> </ul>
301.4 Compensation	Directors shall not receive compensation for service as directors or officers. Directors may, if authorized by the board or a committee having such authority, receive reimbursement for travel and other actual expenses related to activities on behalf of AAUW California. (See also Policy 313-Conflict of Interest).

### Policy 302 – Officers of the Corporation

302.1 Overview	The officers of the corporation will be the president, president-elect (odd numbered year), vice-president (even numbered year), chief financial officer (CFO) and secretary.
	Except for the vice-president, who is appointed by the president and approved by the board, all officers are elected by the state-wide membership. Each officer is one of the eleven (11) directors that compose the board of directors.

#### Policy 303 – President

303.1 President - Role	The state president is the chief executive officer, administrator and coordinator of the corporation. As the chief executive officer, the president is the official representative of AAUW California in the activities of AAUW at the state, branch and community levels. The president is the presiding officer of the board of directors and is an ex-officio, non-voting member of all committees except the Nominations and Elections Committee.
303.2 Election Cycle	The president is elected by the membership in odd-numbered years to a one-year term as president-elect and is automatically followed by a two-year term as president.
303.3 How the President Serves	<ul> <li>The president serves as the chair and a voting member of the Executive Committee. The president also:</li> <li>Attends all other committee meetings whenever possible, except the Nominations and Elections Committee.</li> <li>Promotes and interprets the mission, purposes, policies and program of AAUW.</li> <li>Communicates AAUW information to state and branch levels and to the public.</li> <li>Communicates with branch presidents and leadership teams on the activities of the board of directors and the state at regular intervals throughout the year, utilizing all forms of communication.</li> <li>Represents AAUW California in all work with other organizations and at all meetings and conferences, appointing a designated alternate representative when appropriate.</li> </ul>

303.4 The President's Responsibilities	<ul> <li>The president has overall responsibility for AAUW California. The responsibilities include the following:</li> <li>Planning the annual work calendar, taking into consideration all deadlines required to ensure the smooth progression of the work of the state.</li> <li>Negotiating and signing all leases, agreements and contracts for AAUW California, in consultation with the CFO and appropriate board member or committee chair regarding terms and conditions of contracts being negotiated. (See also Policy 403-Office and Office Manager).</li> <li>General oversight of the office operations at the AAUW California office.</li> <li>Countersigning all AAUW California checks over \$2,000 and any non-vouchered checks, regardless of the amount. In the extended absence of the president, the vice president or president-elect is authorized to countersign.</li> <li>Ensuring that the corporation follows state and federal regulations governing nonprofit corporations, making sure all appropriate documents are filed with the state.</li> <li>Ensuring that the Gole California Office of Incorporation whenever there are significant amendments or revisions.</li> <li>Filing all required forms with AAUW pertaining to the names and addresses of incoming and continuing officers by the deadlines designated by AAUW.</li> <li>Bringing the state bylaws into conformity following meetings of AAUW and the state at which bylaws changes are proposed and approved, working in consultation with the state Governance Committee chair to accomplish this responsibility.</li> <li>Establishing a communication schedule at the beginning of the program year.</li> <li>Working with committee chairs and program directors to plan and monitor annual goals and activities that align with the organization's priorities.</li> </ul>
303.5 President as the Convening Officer	The president serves as the convening officer and is responsible for overall scheduling and planning of all meetings of the state, board of directors and Executive Committee.
	<ul> <li>As convening officer, the president does the following:</li> <li>Plans the schedules and agendas for board of directors and Executive Committee meetings.</li> </ul>

303.6 President's Responsibility for Paid Office Staff	<ul> <li>Plans agendas for the business session at the Annual Event in consultation with relevant board members and committee chairs including the parliamentarian, and Governance chair.</li> <li>The president has overall responsibility for paid office staff. The president can:</li> <li>Hire, in consultation with the CFO and one other director, paid office staff who will work under the direction of the president.</li> <li>In consultation with the Public Policy Committee chair and one other director, interview independent legislative advocate candidates and recommend applicant(s) to the Executive Committee.</li> <li>Review paid office staff performance and make recommendations to the Executive Committee regarding changes to conditions of employment.</li> <li>Oversee and supervise office staff.</li> <li>Review and approve all requests from outside organizations for membership information, in accordance with Policy 203- Release of Information to Third Parties.</li> </ul>		
303.7 President's Responsibility for Leadership Recruitment	<ul> <li>Has overall responsibility for developing and implementing a leadership recruitment plan. The president can:</li> <li>Develop and implement a leadership recruitment plan and appropriate forms for appointed leadership positions.</li> <li>Appoint committee chairs and committee members, ad-hoc board committees, special committee and task force chairs, as appropriate, for the second year of the president's two-year term.</li> <li>(See Policy 901-Committees, Appointments and Chairs).</li> </ul>		
303.8 President's Action on Appointments	When appropriate, the president can recommend and endorse AAUW California members for appointments to outside organizations or agencies.		

#### Policy 304 – President-Elect

304.1 President-Elect Election	The membership elects the president-elect in odd-numbered years, to serve a one-year term as president- elect during the second year of the president's term, followed by a two-year term as president.	
304.2 Voting Member	The president-elect is a voting member of the board as one of the 11 (eleven) directors and the Executive Committee, and is an ex-officio, non-voting member of all committees except the Nominations and Elections Committee.	
304.3 Duties of President-Elect	The president-elect will observe and participate in the activities of the role of president to facilitate transition.	
	At the end of the one-year term, the president-elect appoints committee chairs and committee members, ad-hoc board committees, special committee and task force chairs, as appropriate, for the next year when the president- elect becomes president. (See Policy 901 for appointment procedures).	
	In the absence or disability of the president, the president-elect performs all the duties of the president.	
	The president-elect also performs other duties as the president or board may direct.	

#### Policy 305 – Vice President

305.1 Vice President Appointment	The president appoints the vice president with approval of the board of directors in even-numbered years when there is no president-elect. The approval of the appointee will be made by the incoming board no later than July 31.
305.2 Voting Member	The vice president is a voting member of the board as one of the 11 (eleven) directors, a voting member of the Executive Committee, and an ex-officio, non-voting member of all committees except the Nominations and Elections Committee.
305.3 Duties	<ul> <li>The duties of the vice-president are to:</li> <li>Perform all the duties of the president, in the absence or disability of the president.</li> <li>Assume all the powers of the president, when acting as president.</li> <li>Perform other duties as the president or board may direct.</li> </ul>

#### Policy 306 – Chief Financial Officer

306.1 Voting Member	The chief financial officer (CFO) is a voting member of the board and the Executive Committee.	
306.2 Responsible for Finance Committee	The CFO has overall responsibility for the Finance Committee and Investment Subcommittee. (See also Policy 915-Finance Committee). The CFO does the following:	
	<ul> <li>Establishes the agenda and chairs all meetings of the Finance Committee.</li> <li>In coordination with the meetings planner and Annual Event manager, develops a budget for the Annual Event for approval of the Executive Committee.</li> <li>Presents the conferences and Annual Event budget for approval of the Executive Committee.</li> <li>Ensures that all Finance Committee responsibilities are met.</li> </ul>	
306.3 Responsible for Managing Income and Expenditures	<ul> <li>The CFO is responsible for managing all AAUW California income and operating budget. To do so, the CFO:</li> <li>Solicits budget requests from board members and committee and task force chairs for consideration by the Finance Committee.</li> <li>Presents the budget to the board of directors for approval.</li> <li>Supervises the expenditure of state funds within the approved budget by receiving and authorizing bills and vouchers for payment.</li> <li>Issues checks using either electronic payment through the bank or via check prepared by the office manager or CFO.</li> <li>Vouchers over \$2000.00 must be approved by the president before reimbursement is made.</li> <li>Consults with the president on any proposed lease, agreement or contract. (See also Policy 403– Office and Office Manager).</li> <li>Reports revenue and expenses quarterly to the board and to the membership at the Annual Event.</li> <li>Submits quarterly investment reports to the board that provide a clear picture of the status of the current investment portfolio.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li><u>Note</u>: A separate subtopic that follows describes the management report in greater detail).</li> <li>Retains vouchers, receipts and other supporting financial records for at least seven years. The official books, permanent tax files and other business documents, electronic or hard copy, should be retained by the CFO at the office.</li> </ul>	

	<ul> <li>Reviews all financial records of state sanctioned accounts by June 30.</li> <li>Has signatory authority on all bank accounts held in the name of AAUW California, including conferences and convention accounts (if established), AAUW Fund accounts, and savings and investment accounts.</li> <li>Ensures that income tax and other government reports required of the state as a nonprofit corporation are filed.</li> <li>Supervises the preparation of financial impact statements for proposed bylaws and resolutions.</li> </ul>
306.4 Negotiates AAUW California Insurance Programs	<ul> <li>AAUW California negotiates insurance programs as follows:</li> <li>In consultation with the president, negotiates comprehensive liability, bonding, and directors' and officers' insurance, e.g., pricing, service agreements, customer contact.</li> <li>Informs branches of insurance coverage, fees and deadlines.</li> <li>Provides information regarding all aspects of insurance coverage, including risk management procedures, and other insurance carrier requirements.</li> <li>Ensures that all insurance premiums and fees are collected and paid.</li> </ul>
306.5 Initiates Financial Review	<ul> <li>The CFO has overall responsibility, with the Executive Committee, for seeing that a financial review occurs. The CFO does this by:</li> <li>Recruiting an accounting firm to conduct the annual state financial reviews. Bids from accounting firms may be solicited every five years or as needed and the results submitted to the board for approval in April.</li> <li>Receiving reports of income and expenditures from all chairs.</li> </ul>
306.6 Assists Branches with Finances	<ul> <li>The CFO assists branches and interbranch councils with AAUW finances. The CFO:</li> <li>Acts as consultant to branches and interbranch councils regarding state and financial policies, branch finances, bookkeeping and tax returns.</li> <li>Notifies all newly organized branches about the procedures for obtaining a letter of exemption from the California Franchise Tax Board and applying for tax ID numbers.</li> <li>Sends a reminder letter to the branches concerning income tax forms prior to the November 15 deadline.</li> <li>Distributes financial information, including deadlines and procedures, to branch finance officers, using all available forms of state communications.</li> <li>Plans and conducts workshops at conferences and the Annual Event, as requested.</li> </ul>

#### Policy 307 – Secretary

307.1 The Elected Secretary	two-yea	The AAUW California secretary is a position elected by the membership for a two-year term in the even-numbered years. The secretary is a voting member of the board of directors and the Executive Committee.		
307.2 Overall Responsibility		The secretary has overall responsibility for the minutes of the board of directors, Executive Committee, and annual membership meetings.		
307.3	The sec	retary follows these steps in producing minutes. The secretary:		
Procedure for Minutes	Step	Action		
	1	Monitors proposed motions entered on the online AAUW California strategic plan for consideration by the board of directors or the Executive Committee. Confirms motion details entered by the maker, including number, maker's name, date, text of motion, justification, fiscal impact and outcome of vote.		
	2	Records the minutes of the board and Executive Committee meetings.		
	3	Appends the Nominations and Elections Committee report with the election results to the minutes of the board meeting following the annual election.		
	4	Sends draft copies of minutes from each meeting to the president and parliamentarian within two weeks of the meeting <del>s</del> for purposes of editing.		
	5	After review by the president and parliamentarian, sends copies of the draft minutes to the board.		
	6	Maintains file copies of all minutes with attachments in the office.		
307.4 Other Secretarial Tasks	<ul> <li>Mair</li> <li>Hold</li> <li>Perfector</li> <li>Com</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The secretary is responsible for the following as well:</li> <li>Maintains files of all written reports presented at meetings</li> <li>Holds the corporate seal</li> <li>Performs duties as directed by the board of directors and the Executive Committee</li> </ul>		
		es correspondence as directed by actions of the board of directors or Executive Committee.		

#### Policy 308 – Executive Committee

308.1 Executive Committee Composition	The Executive Committee is a standing committee of the board, composed of the elected and appointed officers of the board: the president, president-elect or vice president, secretary, and CFO. The parliamentarian shall serve on the committee as a non-voting consultant.	
308.2 Executive Committee Responsibilities	<ul> <li>The Executive Committee has the following responsibilities:</li> <li>Exercise the authority of the board between meetings to make decisions and take actions relative to the operation of the corporation</li> <li>Report any decisions made or actions taken at each meeting of the full board</li> <li>Develop policies for board approval and review and recommend to the board changes to the bylaws and to other operating policies.</li> <li>Oversee and have final decision-making authority as follows: <ul> <li>Oversee personnel matters, including but not limited to, supervising the executive director, if any, and any other employees of the corporation. This includes determining the duties, salary and tenure of paid staff.</li> <li>Determine what special committees and task forces are needed, in addition to those named in policy, for the work of the state.</li> <li>Select outside consultants and contractors, as needed.</li> <li>Approve grant proposals prior to submission to outside funding sources.</li> <li>Approve the appointment of the assistant to the president, if any.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Serve as the personnel committee for AAUW California.</li> </ul>	

#### Policy 309 – Parliamentarian

309.1 Parliamentarian role	The parliamentarian serves as consultant and advisor to the president, state and branch leadership, and all AAUW California members on parliamentary procedure. The parliamentarian is an ex-officio, non-voting member of the board, Executive Committee, and Governance Committee.		
309.2 Responsibilities	<ul> <li>The parliamentarian is responsible for:</li> <li>Assisting with the preparation and wording of motions and suggesting clarifications to submitted motions.</li> <li>Consulting with other committees at the request of the president or committee chair.</li> <li>Maintaining copies of the current versions of the AAUW charter, state bylaws, policies and procedures; and the most current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised.</li> <li>Conferring with the president in advance regarding business to come before the Executive Committee, board and state membership meetings in order to anticipate issues that might arise.</li> <li>Consulting with the Nominations and Elections Committee, as needed, regarding responsibilities, the current offices to be filled, and the electoral procedures to be followed.</li> <li>(See Policy 800- Nominations and Elections)</li> </ul>		
309.3 Preparing the Call for Resolutions	The parliamentarian prepares a call for resolutions for the first administrative packet of the program year. (See Policy 105-Resolutions).		

309.4 Presenting the Resolutions	force a	esolutions are proposed, the parliamentarian works with a task ppointed by the president to oversee the presentation of ions on the state ballot. The parliamentarian:
	Step	Action
	1	Assists branches with proposed resolutions concerning form, clarity, and content of proposed resolutions, including the resolutions' effective duration and financial implications. Prepares a task force recommendation for action on proposed resolutions.
	2	Refers proposed resolutions to all standing committee chairs for review and comment, and to the CFO for preparation of a fiscal impact statement.
	3	Publishes and distributes properly presented proposed resolutions, including the CFO's fiscal impact statement, through the same state communications channels used for all other ballot measures.
	4	Working with the Nominations and Elections Committee chair, ensures resolutions appear on the state ballot.
	5	Works with the Communications Committee to create a forum for discussing resolutions. Arranges for a discussion of resolutions immediately before or after the Annual Event business sessions, if logistically possible.
	6	Ensures that policies and procedures are updated, if needed, to conform to adopted resolutions.
309.5 Parliamentarian's Other Duties	<ul> <li>The parliamentarian also has the following duties. The parliamentarian:</li> <li>Reviews the meeting announcement and agenda for the business session at the Annual Event.</li> <li>Performs such other duties as requested.</li> </ul>	

## Policy 310 – Assistant to the President

310.1 Assistant to the President's Role	The assistant to the president is an appointed position. The appointment of this position is optional and is at the will of the current president. The appointee shall be approved and confirmed by the Executive Committee.
310.2 Duties	The appointee will perform duties and tasks assigned by the president, which may include tasks such as board preparation postings, tracking board action items, maintaining internal board contact lists, and tracking the president's travel schedule, as well as any other duties deemed necessary by the president.

#### Policy 311 - Policies for Co-Officer Positions

311.1 Elected Individually	Each person running as a co-officer and duly elected is elected is individually as one of the eleven (11) elected director positions.
311.2 Voting Individually	Each co-officer has a vote per their position as a director (note: California Corporate Code requirement).

# Policy 312 – Resignations/Removals and Filling Vacancies on the Board of Directors

312.1 Resignations and Removals	Any director may resign by giving written notice to the president or the secretary. The resignation shall become effective when the notice is given unless it specifies a later date for the resignation to become effective. Any director may be removed from the board by a vote of the members at any annual or special meeting or by written or electronic ballot.	
312.2 Vacancies, Conditions	<ul> <li>A vacancy or vacancies on the board shall exist on the occurrence of any the following conditions:</li> <li>The death, resignation, or removal of any director.</li> <li>The declaration by resolution of the board of a vacancy in the office of a director who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court or convicted of a felony.</li> <li>The vote of the members to remove any director(s).</li> <li>The increase of the authorized number of directors.</li> <li>The failure of the members, at any meeting of members at which any director or directors are to be elected, to elect the number of directors required to be elected at that meeting.</li> <li>The resignation or removal of an elected officer.</li> <li>No change in the authorized number of director's term expires.</li> </ul>	
312.2.1 Appointment of Replacement	The President has the authority to appoint a replacement with the approval of the remaining directors at a properly called board meeting. Individuals appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve until the end of the term of the director whose vacancy they are filling. Refer to Policy 800 - Nominations and Elections	

#### Policy 313 – Conflict of Interest

	1		
313.1 Conflict of Interest – Rule	with it impor interest affec	ehalf of AAUW California at any level and in any capacity carries tant ethical obligations and legal responsibilities. Conflict of cts all aspects of governance and fiduciary responsibility and ncial accountability.	
	The welfare of the organization must come before personal benefit. Concurrent service on multiple levels of AAUW, including but not limited to national, state, interbranch, and branch, carries with it the potential for conflicts of interest due to the competing interests of the various AAUW entities and projects. Concurrent service on boards of directors of multiple organizations carries a similar risk for conflicts of interest.		
	AAUW leaders, at any level, are encouraged not to compromise their fiduciary responsibilities in this way.		
313.2 Definition, Conflict of Interest	The definition of a "conflict of interest" is a situation in which a board or committee member is part of a discussion or decision by the board or committee that has the potential to financially benefit that board or committee member or a member of that board or committee member's immediate family. The "immediate family" means spouse or domestic partner, children, parents, siblings, parents-in-law, or siblings-in-law.		
313.2.1 Conflict of Interest –	Board and committee chairs are to follow these guidelines regarding conflict of interest (COI) conditions:		
Guidelines	СОІ	Guidelines	
	lf a conflict exists,	Actively seek to avoid situations and activities that create an actual or potential conflict between the individual's personal interests and the interests of the corporation.	
		Disclose the conflict to the board or committee, as appropriate, relative to an issue being considered by the board or any committee.	
		Abstain from discussion or voting on the issue if you believe that a conflict exists relative to an issue being considered by the board or any committee. The president may confer with the governance chair and/or parliamentarian for clarification if a conflict of interest situation is in question.	
		Avoid the fact and appearance of a conflict of interest.	

		Discuss with the president that you are unsure that a certain transaction, activity, or relationship constitutes a conflict of interest.
		The president will determine whether disclosure to the board is required or if the issue requires the assistance of legal counsel.
		Abstain from the discussion or voting on the issue and leave the room where the meeting is held. The meeting minutes shall reflect that the conflict of interest was disclosed, and the interested person was not present during the final discussion or vote and did not vote.
	If there are business or	Refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or that could impair the ability to make impartial investment decisions.
fi	financial interests,	Disclose to the president, all employees and directors, any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct business within AAUW California's jurisdiction.
		Disclose any large personal financial/investment positions that overlap with AAUW California's investments and that could be related to the performance of investments.
	If you do not disclose conflict of interests in advance or at all,	the board shall determine the continuation of membership or the person's participation in their role.
313.2.2 Definitions – Conflict of Interest –		ember of the board, appointed chair, project or program neir immediate relative shall realize any personal gain from 2.
Examples	Conflict	Description

	Gifts	Acceptance of gifts, entertainment, services, loans, or promises of future benefits from any person who might benefit from said individual's relationship with AAUW California.
	Personal gain	Performing for personal gain, any service to a supplier of goods to the organization as an employee or consultant, or any other capacity that promises compensation of any kind.
	Confidenti al material	Confidential material (rosters and personal contact information) acquired during service, shall not be used for personal advantage or shared with any other group, organization or business.
	Employed position	If a director, an appointed chair or a project or program manager becomes a candidate for an employed position with AAUW California, that person shall resign her/his volunteer position prior to applying for employment.
313.3 Conflict of Interest Form	Annually, at the beginning of the AAUW fiscal year, each director, appointed chair, and project or program manager shall sign the disclosure form regarding conflict of interest. The form can be completed <u>HERE</u> .	

# Policy 314 - Meetings Planner

314.1 Meetings Planner	The meetings planner is responsible for coordinating the logistics of all statewide meetings, including but not limited to board meetings, conferences, and the Annual Event.	
314.2 Meetings Planner Duties	<ul> <li>The meetings planner has the following duties:</li> <li>Consults with the president and appropriate leaders concerning host branches and local chairs for state meetings, conferences and the Annual Event and makes recommendations to the Executive Committee for approval.</li> <li>Ensures that all meetings, conferences and the Annual Event are adequately staffed, and the required local arrangements are completed.</li> <li>Meets with facilities staff prior to each event to review all event requirements.</li> <li>Acts as sole contact with meeting site personnel, working on site at all state meetings.</li> <li>Writes all notes and letters of appropriate.</li> </ul>	
314.3 Meetings Planner Negotiations	The meetings planner has responsibility for the negotiations of all contracts related to meetings of AAUW California including arrangements for room rates, meals, meeting rooms, equipment and setups, and services, making every effort to keep the cost of group meals that are to be paid by the state within the board-approved meal reimbursement rates.	

314.4 Negotiations Procedure	The meetings planner follows these steps in making sure that all contractual obligations are fulfilled:		
FIOLEUMIE	Step	Action	
	1	Submits all required documentation and paperwork to meeting facilities and coordinates with the facilities staff.	
	2	Submits all contracts to the state president for approval and signature.	
	3	Handles all meeting AV requests.	
314.5 Meetings Planner,	The meetings planner also does the following:		
Other Duties	<ul> <li>Co-chairs the Annual Event planning team with the appropriate manager.</li> </ul>		
	(See Pol	icy 315 - Annual Event Chair)	
	Assis	sts the CFO with:	
	<ul> <li>Assessing the budget needs for meetings</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Confirming the board rooming list</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Mair</li> </ul>	ntains an experience notebook	
	• Submits an annual report to the president		

# Policy 315 – Annual Event Chair

315.1 Annual Event Manager	The Annual Event manager is appointed to a two-year term of office.
	<ul> <li>The Annual Event manager has overall responsibility for planning and developing the Annual Event in consultation with the meetings planner. The Annual Event may be an annual meeting or a convention , as directed by the board of directors. The Annual Event manager:</li> <li>Leads the planning team in planning schedules and coordinating programs for the Annual Event. The team will include the president, CFO, chairs of appropriate committees, and other contributors as deemed necessary.</li> <li>Calls planning team meetings as required, preferably in conjunction with state board meetings to minimize travel expenses. The initial planning meeting should occur no later than August if the Annual Event is designated as an annual meeting</li> <li>Consults the evaluations and reports from previous state general meetings early in the planning process. Creates an evaluation form for attendees and compiles the results of those evaluations.</li> <li>Assists the Communications Committee with the preparation of Annual Meeting information and registration forms that will be distributed to the membership using all appropriate communication publications and the state website.</li> <li>Immediately after the Annual Event, meets to evaluate the event in consultation with the meetings planner, local arrangements chair, Program Committee chair, president, and any other contributors.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Creates a post-event review report that includes a summary of the participant evaluations and findings from the post- event evaluation meeting.</li> <li>May request the president to appoint an assistant to whom some tasks may be delegated.</li> <li>Reports to the board on planning progress and attends board meetings at the request of the president.</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>If the Annual Event is a convention:</li> <li>Prepares a proposal for board members to review in October. Presentation will include the budget (including the terms for volunteer discounts and vendor/branch sales, table rates etc.), program themes, AV needs, room set-up, etc.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Oversees the publication of an official program, if offered, and its delivery to the event site, if published in hard copy.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Oversees registration and creation of registration packets for attendees.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Consults with meetings planner prior to approval of AV requests.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Appoints an editor to produce and distribute daily SnapShots, if planned.</li> </ul>	
315.2 Local Arrangements Chair	If the Annual Event is a convention, the local arrangements chair recruits an ad hoc committee of members living near the convention location. The group recruits, schedules, and oversees all the volunteers. The chair does the following:	
	<ul> <li>Works with the Annual Event manager and planning team to identify and coordinate the staffing needs for convention, including but not limited to: registration; packets, workshop assistants, marketplace, volunteer room, meals, greeters, and Connection Corner, depending on what activities are offered.</li> </ul>	
	Coordinates the recruitment of vendors for the marketplace	
	<ul> <li>Attends planning meetings at the request of the Annual Event manager</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Assists the planning team with selecting local entertainment and opening ceremonies</li> </ul>	
	• Provides the Annual Event manager and office manager with a list of those eligible for discounted convention registration rates, in accordance with Policy 602: Annual Event (if a Convention)	

## 400 - Operations

# Policy 401 – Board Meetings

401.1 Notice of	The notice of board meetings, specifying the time and place of the meeting, goes to each director:		
Meetings	At least	If	
	Seven days (7) prior	Sent by first-class mail or express mail service	
	48 hours before the meeting	<ul> <li>Delivered in person</li> <li>Delivered by telephone (including a voice messaging system)</li> <li>Delivered by electronic transmission</li> </ul>	
	Note: Corporations Code	Section 20	
401.1.1 Notice of Meeting Confirmation	<ul> <li>The confirmation of delivery for the meeting notice occurs when deposited or received by at least one of the following:</li> <li>The U.S. mail</li> <li>An express mail service</li> <li>A person</li> <li>A telephone</li> <li>An electronic transmission.</li> </ul> Note: A notice, or waiver of notice, need not specify the purpose of any meeting of the board.		
401.1.2 Waiver of Notice for Meetings	<ul> <li>The notice of a meeting need not go to any director who, either before or after the meeting:</li> <li>Signs a waiver of notice.</li> <li>Provides written consent to the holding of the meeting.</li> <li>Provides an approval of the minutes of the meeting.</li> <li><u>Note</u>: The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting.</li> </ul>		

401.1.3 Disposition of Waivers, Consents, and Approvals	All such waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meetings. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who attends the meeting and does not protest, before or at the commencement of the meeting, the lack of notice to him or her.		
401.2 Board Meetings by Telephone, Video, Electronic Transmission	<ol> <li>Directors may participate in a meeting of the board through use of conference telephone, electronic video screen communication, or electronic transmission by and to the corporation if in accordance with Corporation Code Sections 20 and 21.</li> <li>Participation in a meeting through use of conference telephone or electronic video screen communication means the same as being present or in person at that meeting if all directors participating in the meeting can hear one another.</li> <li>Participation in a meeting through use of electronic transmission by and to the corporation, other than conference telephone and electronic video screen communication, means the same as being present or in person at that meeting if <u>both</u> of the following apply:         <ul> <li>Each director participating in the meeting can communicate with all the other directors concurrently.</li> <li>Each director is provided the means of participating in all matters before the board, including, without limitation, the capacity to propose, or to interpose an objection to, a specific action to be taken by the corporation.</li> </ul> </li> </ol>		
401.3 Quorum	A majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum of the board for the transaction of business.		
401.4 Adjournment	A majority of the directors in attendance, whether a quorum, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If the meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, notice of the adjournment to another time or place must be given prior to the time of the adjourned meeting to the directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment. Any business that might have been transacted at a meeting as originally noticed may be transacted at an adjourned and rescheduled meeting.		
401.5 Closed Meetings	The president may close any meeting of the board so that only directors and individuals deemed necessary by the president are present.		
401.6 Attendance by the General	Members of AAUW California who are not directors may attend any board meeting unless excluded by the president as described in "Closed Meetings."		

Membership at Board Meetings	
401.7 Board Action Without Meeting	<ul> <li>Any action required or permitted to be taken by the board may be taken without a meeting if all the directors on the board have given prior signed consent to conducting business between board meetings. Directors shall sign the Director's Consent for Board Action Between Meetings located <u>HERE</u>. The signed consent shall be submitted electronically no later than July 31st and considered in force until the following July. The president, or designee, shall confirm that all directors have submitted the form.</li> <li>When directed by the president, elected directors must indicate their consent with an electronic signature on the form individually or collectively consent in writing permitting the action to be taken when necessary.</li> </ul>
401.8 Procedure for Voting When Action is Taken Without a Meeting	<ul> <li>Following the filing of the signed consent forms, a written conference call or electronic vote may be taken at the request of the president on any question submitted to all voting members of the board provided that every voting member of the board will have the opportunity to vote on the question submitted. If a majority of the board votes on a submitted question, the vote will be counted and will have the same effect as if cast at a board meeting.</li> <li>The board of directors follows these steps to vote between meetings: See Board Motion Form for Actions Between Meetings <u>HERE</u>.</li> <li>Only an elected member of the board can make a motion. The motion will be scripted by the submitter with consultation by the president if necessary.</li> <li>The board secretary will be responsible for distributing the voting question by electronic or alternate means to all voting members of the board. The distribution will include a deadline and method of response to the question.</li> <li>All responses will be returned by the voters to the board secretary by electronic or alternate method as directed by the board secretary.</li> <li>On any question, when the board receives a majority vote, action may be taken and will have the same effect as if cast at board of directors meeting.</li> <li>The board secretary is responsible for securing a complete vote, reporting results to the board, recording the results in the meeting minutes of the next regular board meeting, and entering the results in the motions log appended to the annual strategic plan posted online.</li> </ul>

## Policy 402 – Executive Committee Meetings

402.1 Notice Requirements 402.2 Quorum	same as Article X requirem writing o A majori constitut	notice for meetings of the Executive Committee shall be the the notice requirement for the board of directors as written in III, Section 6 of the bylaws, in accordance with California Code nents, provided, however, that this notice may be waived in or by the committee member's actual attendance at the meeting. Ity of the voting members of the Executive Committee shall are a quorum, and the acts of a majority of the voting members at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall make up the act
402.3 Voting Between Meetings - Overview	or recom As author call or el any ques Committ Followin or electro question provided opportur committ	mendation of the committee. rized in the bylaws, Article VIII, Section 5, a written, conference ectronic vote may be taken at the request of the president on tion submitted to all voting members of the Executive
402.4 Executive Committee	See Boar	utive Committee follows these steps to vote between meetings. In Motion Form for Actions Between Meetings <u>HERE</u> .
Procedure for	Step	Action
Voting Between Meetings	1	The submitter will script the motion for distribution to the members of the Executive Committee using the approved motion form. The submitter will obtain a second to the motion if required.
	2	The board secretary is responsible for distributing the voting question by electronic or alternative means to the members of the Executive Committee. The distribution will include a response deadline and a method of response.
	3	All responses will be returned by the voters to the board secretary by electronic or alternate means as instructed by the secretary.

4	On any question, when the Executive Committee receives a majority vote, action may be taken and will have the same effect as if cast at an Executive Committee meeting.
5	The board secretary is responsible for securing a complete vote, reporting results to the Executive Committee, recording the results in the Executive Committee minutes and entering the results in the motions log appended to the annual strategic plan posted online.

# Policy 403 - Office and Office Manager

403.1 Office - An Overview	AAUW California maintains an office in Sacramento. The state business of the board of directors and committee chairs is centralized, as appropriate, through the state office. The AAUW California president oversees the office. The Executive Committee of the board of directors serves as the personnel committee.
403.1.1 Responsibility of Executive Oversight	The Executive Committee, i.e., the state president and the chief financial officer, through their oversight, do the following: Review all documents for signing or renewal pertaining to office operations, e.g., leases, agreements, contracts. Ensure best business practices are in place for the administration of the
403.1.2 Responsibility of the State President	office and its related functions, facilities, and equipment. The state president has overall responsibility for and must sign leases, agreements, contracts and all legal documents pertaining to the corporation.
403.2 Office Manager – The Role	The office manager's role is to support AAUW California's mission and vision through the delivery of services to state officers, state committees, branches, and members. The office manager is an at-will employee of the corporation and may not accept outside employment without the express approval of the board. The office manager performs day-to-day administrative functions under the supervision of the state president and/or a designated member of the Executive Committee.

403.2.1 Responsibilities of the Office Manager	<ul> <li>The office manager provides general information to members, prospective members and the public.</li> <li>Produces and distributes regularly scheduled communications and mailings of the state that the state Communications Committee does not handle.</li> <li>Provides bookkeeping functions that support the financial operations of the state.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Maintains all state files that must be retained for both legal and historical purposes. Those files include but are not limited to: minutes of the corporation, resolutions, historical records, governance records, public policy records, financial records, and other archival documents. Branch bylaws are filed at National and each branch is responsible for the archival of its other documents, such as financial records and Policies and Procedures.</li> <li>Maintains an asset list and files of letters of agreement for equipment use. Reference: Policy 404-Equipment.</li> <li>Serves as the assistant to the secretary of the corporation, and performs all related duties delegated by the secretary.</li> <li>Serves as the assistant to the chief financial officer (CFO) of the corporation and performs all related duties delegated by the CFO.</li> <li>Receives general oversight from the CFO on all related financial duties.</li> <li>Performs any other duties as required by the board of directors, Executive Committee, and state committees as authorized by the state president and/or board of directors.</li> </ul>

#### Policy 404 – Equipment

404.1 AAUW California Assets – Responsibility	The office manager, in consultation with the president and chief financial officer, tracks and maintains the list of owned/leased equipment that AAUW California possesses. The equipment is for the performance of AAUW California business.
404.2 Loaning Equipment – Procedure	The AAUW California board members may borrow equipment from the AAUW California office during their term. Board members need to follow these steps when borrowing AAUW California equipment: Step/Action
	<ol> <li>Obtain a letter of agreement from the AAUW California office.</li> <li>Review the terms of the loan, including responsibility for maintenance and protection of the equipment from damage or loss.</li> <li>Fill out and sign the letter of agreement to borrow AAUW California equipment.</li> <li>Send the physical letter or email a copy to the AAUW California office and retain a copy in the board member's files.</li> <li>Notify the AAUW California office manager of the date for equipment pickup.</li> </ol>

# Policy 405 – Interbranch Councils (IBCs)

405.1 Purpose	The purpose of Interbranch Council (IBC) Is to facilitate regular collaboration among branches in geographic areas where two or more branches exist. All actions of the IBC must be in accordance with the AAUW and AAUW California mission, purpose and Use of Name policy. However, an IBC is not recognized as an affiliate of national AAUW.
405.1.1 Why IBCs Exist	<ul> <li>IBCs exist to:</li> <li>Foster communication among branches.</li> <li>Encourage multi-branch activities.</li> <li>Alert branches to act on intercity or inter-county issues.</li> <li>Establish local positions that are consistent with AAUW's positions on issues affecting the interbranch area.</li> <li>Engage in activities that enhance and promote AAUW California membership and programs.</li> </ul>
405.2 Organization and Structure – Composition	<ul> <li>The following compose the members of the IBC:</li> <li>IBC officers</li> <li>Branch presidents or designated branch members</li> <li>Branch public policy chair.</li> <li>State and AAUW team members</li> <li>All interested branch members</li> </ul>
405.2.1 IBC Dues	<ul> <li>Each IBC determines its dues based on anticipated income (if any) from other sources and expected expenses, such as:</li> <li>Mailings</li> <li>Printing of minutes</li> <li>Membership in coalition organizations</li> <li>Publicity</li> <li>Meeting space costs</li> <li>Since an IBC is not an affiliate of AAUW, we recommend that dues and other IBC funds be maintained with one of its member branches rather than in a separate IBC bank account. IBCs can also choose to divest themselves of all funds and share expenses for events among branches as the need arises.</li> </ul>
405.2.2 Officers	Each IBC has officers or a governing committee responsible for carrying out the duties of the council.

405.2.3 IBC Governing Documents	Each IBC has its own governing documents that include, at a minimum, a policy sheet or set of standing rules. IBC's do not have bylaws as they are not recognized as an affiliate entity by National. Only affiliate entities have bylaws. The AAUW Governance Committee and parliamentarian are available for consultation to IBCs regarding governing documents.
405.2.4 IBC Meeting Schedule	Each IBC establishes a meeting schedule that includes a minimum number of meetings per year. It has the option to call special meetings, determine locations that serve membership for maximum representation and establish who should be responsible for hosting the meetings.
405.2.5 IBC Bank Accounts	Since an IBC is not an affiliate of national AAUW, it does not have tax exempt status through AAUW. Having its own bank account creates a requirement for the IBC to obtain its own tax exempt status and file annual tax reports with the IRS, California Franchise Tax Board (FTB) and California Attorney General's Office. Hence, we do not recommend that IBCs have their own bank accounts.
	Maintaining IBC funds in one of its member branches would be a better option. IBCs can also choose to divest themselves of all funds and share expenses for events among branches as the need arises.
	Note that if an IBC maintains funds in one of its branches, it should create some policies to ensure oversight of these funds.
405.2.6 IBC Fundraising	Since an IBC is not an affiliate of national AAUW, it is not permitted to raise funds as an AAUW entity (see national AAUW Fundraising Policy 501). Any fundraising should be done through one of its branches.

## Policy 406 - Scheduling of AAUW Events

Guidelineof significance and known observance by members of various groups.
---

## Policy 407 - AAUW Endorsement of Political Candidate(s)

407.1 Adherence to AAUW National Policies	AAUW California and its branches and IBCs shall adhere to AAUW National's candidate endorsement policies stated in AAUW National policy 300.
407.2 Summary of Guidelines	<ul> <li>A 501c(3) branch is not allowed to endorse any candidate, whether partisan or nonpartisan. A 501c(4) may endorse a candidate in a nonpartisan contest, provided it has reviewed state and local election law to learn if such an endorsement is considered a contribution and disallowed. A nonpartisan elective office is an office for which party affiliation does not appear on the ballot next to the candidate's name.</li> <li>A nonpartisan endorsement must be a duly approved action by a properly noticed meeting of the board. It must be represented as an endorsement by the branch board of directors only, not AAUW in its entirety.</li> <li>Branches must avoid any actions which might appear to be providing a mailing list to the candidate.</li> <li>Members are free to personally support a candidate of their choosing, but not in the name of AAUW.</li> </ul>

#### 500 - Finance

## Policy 501 - Operations Fund Budget

501.1 Budget	The operations fund budget shall reflect the mission, goals, priorities, activities and projects of AAUW California. It shall be developed in conjunction with the AAUW California strategic plan to identify funding priorities. (See Policy 104-Strategic Plan). The budget shall include statements of revenue and expense.
501.2 Use of Prior Year's Funds	One half of the prior year's operations net profit may be used to fund current year operational expenses.
501.3 Authority and Approval	The Finance Committee shall develop the budget using realistic estimates for income, historical operating costs, and input from board members and committee chairs. The developed budget is submitted to the board for approval.
501.4 Timeline	A preliminary budget is prepared for the outgoing board for its approval on or before June 15. This budget shall remain in effect until the final budget is approved. The preliminary budget shall be finalized for presentation and approval at the July board of directors meeting or not later than August 15.
501.5 Monitoring	The Finance Committee and the Chief Financial Officer shall monitor the budget throughout the year. The CFO will present to the board any budget adjustments needed at the January board meeting.

# Policy 502 - Bank Accounts

502.1 Bank Accounts	<ul> <li>The current financial accounts include:</li> <li>Convention Self-Insurance Fund (Investment Account)</li> <li>Operations Reserve Fund (Investment Account)</li> <li>State Project Reserve Fund (Investment Account)</li> <li>Operations Checking Account (Non-Investment Account)</li> <li>PayPal Account (Non-Investment Account)</li> <li>For each investment account's purpose and restrictions, see Policy</li> <li>503—Investment Policy.</li> <li>No new accounts may be made in the name of AAUW California without prior authorization by the president and CFO.</li> </ul>
501.2 Electronic Banking	To the extent possible, AAUW California shall use electronic bill pay for check issuance which allows automatic payment of recurring payments, reduces postage costs, and expedites payment to payees.
502.3 Voucher Approval Above \$2000.00	All vouchers for payment exceeding \$2000.00 must also be approved for payment by the president or designee before the voucher is paid using electronic bill payment.
502.4 Authorized Signatures for Accounts and Electronic Access	<ul> <li>Any AAUW California financial account utilizing the AAUW California tax ID number shall have the following officers given signature authority:</li> <li>Chief Financial Officer</li> <li>President</li> <li>President-Elect/Vice President</li> <li>These officers will also have electronic access to these accounts for check issuance and review of checks issued.</li> <li>In addition, the chair of the Investment Subcommittee will have access to all investment accounts to view performance reports and work with the investment advisor to ensure that asset allocations are compliant and within ranges specified in the Investment Policy 503.</li> </ul>

	1		
502.5 Operations	Purpose:		
Checking Account	The Operations Checking Account shall be used to receive deposits and to pay for the ongoing obligations of the organization.		
	Requirements:		
	The checking account shall maintain a minimum balance of \$50,000.		
	lf	Then	
	at fiscal year end, the account balance is more than \$75,000 (excluding "deferred dues"),	One-half of this excess should be transferred to the Operations Reserve Fund for investment.	
	needed during the year,	monies may be transferred into the checking account from the Operations Reserve fund.	
	not feasible to repay the borrowed amount of money as soon as possible or if loans continue to be necessary,	the Chief Financial Officer and Finance Committee should consider recommending a dues increase to the general membership.	
502.6	Purpose: A PayPal account shall be used to receive funds for state events through the ticketing application used for reservations.		
PayPal Account			
	Requirements:		
	The PayPal account should be us and reimburse the ticketing app	ed to receive funds for state events lication for its fees.	
	Funds should be regularly transf Checking Account.	erred out of PayPal to the Operations	
	At fiscal year end, the balance should be zero unless an event is in progress.		

## Policy 503—Investment Policy: Definition of Accounts

503.1 Purpose, Authority and Scope of Investment Policy	Purpose: It is the intent of AAUW California to invest its monies in a manner that will provide an acceptable investment return for both growth and income while minimizing risk. The purpose of the policy is to provide a clear understanding of the guidelines and objectives related to the total AAUW California investment portfolio for the	
	related to the total AAUW California investment portfolio for the AAUW California Board of Directors, the Investment Subcommittee, Finance Committee, investment manager, and others. Related activities provided by this Investment Policy include good cash management, control of disbursements, and cost-effective banking relations.	
	Authority:	
	Delegation of authority is defined in Policy 306, Chief Financial Officer, and Policy 915, Finance Committee.	
	Scope:	
	These Investment Policies apply to all investment assets of AAUW California. All investments shall be pooled into one investment account with three sub-accounts:	
	<ul> <li>General Reserve Fund</li> <li>Operations Reserve Fund</li> <li>State Project Reserve Fund</li> </ul>	
	Balances by type of investment for each sub-account must be maintained in the AAUW California General Ledger.	

503.2 General Reserve Fund	Purpose: The purpose of the General Reserve Fund is to provide a backup cash fund in case membership dues received are much lower than expected. Requirements: This account maintains a \$15,000 balance. It shall be invested in a money market fund. Any balance over \$15,000 should be transferred to the Operations Reserve Fund at the end of the fiscal year.		
503.3 Operations Reserve Fund	of funds to allow AAUW Cal event of unforeseen or exce day-to-day operating expen acts as a reserve for conting If an emergency occur	e purpose of the Operations Reserve Fund is to provide a source unds to allow AAUW California to continue to operate in the nt of unforeseen or exceptional cash shortages and cover the -to-day operating expenses of the organization. This account s as a reserve for contingencies.	
	approved, the balance drops be \$75,000,	that approved amount will be transferred to the checking account for disbursement. elow the board should act to replenish the fund by transferring funds from other accounts or proposing raising membership dues.	

	The Operations Checking account shall have any losses from state events such as the Annual Event, whether a convention or annual meeting, reimbursed from this account. If at the close of the fiscal year the Operations Checking Account Balance is in excess of \$75,000 (excluding "deferred dues"), the excess above \$75,000 should be transferred to this fund for investment. Requirements: The Operations Reserve Fund balance shall have a minimum balance of \$75,000. The principle of this fund should be invested as described in the Investment Guidelines.
503.4 State Project Reserve Fund	Purpose: The purpose of the State Project Reserve Fund is to provide a source of funds to allow AAUW California to fund projects as approved by the AAUW California Board of Directors. Requirements: The State Project Reserve Fund balance shall have a minimum balance of \$20,000. The principle of the fund shall be invested as described in the Investment Guidelines.
503.5 Prudence	Investments shall be made with reasonable judgment and care that persons of reasonable prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their personal affairs. Persons making investments do so, not for speculation, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived. The Investment Subcommittee members and investment managers and/or advisors, who act in accordance with these investment policies and who exercise due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual account's security credit risk or market price changes. Relief of personal responsibility depends on whether the Investment Subcommittee members and investment manager and/or advisors reported the deviations from expectations in a timely fashion to the Executive Committee and took appropriate

	action to control adverse developments excepting those from gross negligence or willful misconduct of such persons.
503.6 Investment Guidelines	The objective for the managed accounts of AAUW California is to have a moderate risk allocation providing for both growth and income for the portfolio.
	Achieving this objective will require a moderate level of risk, a long- term investment horizon and diversification among assets. The funds will be invested to maximize total return (capital appreciation, interest and dividend income) consistent with a prudent level of risk.
503.7 Asset Allocation	AAUW California has three investment assets: a Cash Reserve Fund (called the General Reserve Fund), an Operations Reserve Fund, and a State Project Reserve Fund. The Cash Reserve Fund is to be invested only in assets meeting the definition of Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Operations Reserve Fund and the State Project Reserve Fund are considered "managed accounts" and may be managed separately or as a single investment pool. The board of directors has established the following asset allocation guidelines for the managed accounts. Any deviation of 15% or more of the total portfolio beyond the target goal in any category requires approval from the Investment Subcommittee. Rebalancing of the investments should be performed at least annually. Cash and Cash Equivalents shall include money market funds, Treasury bills, and insured certificates of deposit maturing within one year. Fixed income securities shall include mutual funds and exchange traded funds that invest in US government and agency securities, corporate notes and bonds, mortgage backed securities, treasury inflation protected securities. At least 60% of the bonds within a fund should be rated investment grade. Equities securities shall include mutual funds and exchange traded funds that invest in stocks, are publicly traded on US Exchanges, have a minimum 3 year track record, and focus primarily on domestic stocks. Asset allocation currently recommended for the managed accounts is as follows:

Investment Type	Range	Target Goal
Cash and Cash Equivalents	2% - 5%	2%
Fixed Income	25% - 75%	44%
Equities	20% - 65%	54%
Prohibited Transactior types of investment ac	ns: AAUW California pr ctivities:	ohibits the following
	nd bonds s or other restricted se ess traded on US Excha	

<b></b>	1			
503.8 Return Objectives and Benchmarks	The objective for this investment portfolio is to have a moderate risk allocation providing for both growth and income for the managed accounts. The long-term objective for the assets under this policy is to achieve a return after fees and expenses, in excess of the policy index based on the portfolio's asset allocation. This means meeting or exceeding a weighted index of the total asset allocation and component benchmarks over a rolling three-year period. The policy index would be constructed annually based on the target allocation for each asset class.			
	Asset Benchmark Percentage/Ta			
	Cash and Cash Equivalents	ML 3 month Treasury Bill	2%	
	Fixed Income	Barclay's US Aggregate	44%	
	Equities	S&P 500 or Russell 3000 for domestic stocks, MSCI EAFE for international stocks	54%	
503.9 Internal Control, Oversight	The board of directors shall review the investments, procedures, and adherence to the investment policy and decide what actions will be required. The Investment Subcommittee shall provide to the board of directors information it receives from the investment manager(s) and/or advisor (s) and/or third-party custodians to provide a clear picture of the status of the portfolio.			

503.10 Internal Control, Communications and Reporting	AAUW California requires the following type and frequency of communication and reporting from its investment manager(s) and/or advisors: Monthly:
	Monthly statements showing current cash balances, all activity for the previous period, expected yields on the current portfolio, total account equity and prices and values for all securities held at month-end.
	Semi-Annual:
	Investment manager/advisor will provide at minimum semi-annual portfolio presentations to the Investment Subcommittee which will include reports of the portfolio status, time-weighted returns in accordance with association for investment management and research performance measurement standards, performance comparisons to appropriate benchmarks, economic outlook, investment strategies and other related matters that would be of interest to the Investment Subcommittee.
	OnGoing:
	Ongoing communication by phone, letter or personal consultation will be required as deemed necessary by the investment manager(s) and/or advisors(s) and/or the Investment Subcommittee.
	Changes and Deviations:
	The Investment Subcommittee places trust in and emphasis on the investment strategy employed by the investment manager(s) and/or advisor(s). Any material changes to or deviations from an investment manager(s) and/or advisor(s) approach must be communicated and justified to the board of directors of AAUW California. The board requires the investment manager(s) and/or advisor(s) to communicate any significant changes in management or investment personnel immediately.
503.11 Investment Policies Review and Adoption	It shall be the duty of the Investment Subcommittee to review the policies at least biannually to assure that they remain valid and relevant and recommend any changes in writing to the board of directors.

# Policy 504 – AAUW Fund Assessment

504.1 Collection	The AAUW Fund branch assessment will be collected annually. The February 1 branch membership numbers will be used for AAUW Fund branch assessments. The assessment bill will be mailed from the state office directly to the branch treasurer. Branches will pay their assessments according to the following schedule and send them to the office by the specified deadline:		
	Membership	Amount per branch	
	1-25	\$10	
	26-75	\$40	
	76-175	\$65	
	176-300	\$90	
	301-400 \$115		
	401-600	\$140	
	Over 600	\$165	
	New branches chartered before July 1 shall be responsible for payment of the AAUW Fund branch assessment by the specified date. For new branches, membership on July 1 shall be used to determine the amount of assessment. Assessments are designated according to Policy 903-AAUW Fund Committee.		

## Policy 505 – Insurance and Risk Management

505.1 Insurance Coverage	All activities of an AAUW entity within the state of California, regardless of organizational level, are covered by the state AAUW California liability insurance, if that entity has paid its invoiced share of the state insurance premium or, in the case of interbranch councils, is made up of branches that have all paid their insurance premiums.
505.2 Negotiation	The Chief Financial Officer in consultation with the president shall negotiate all AAUW California insurance coverage programs. These programs include, but are not limited to, comprehensive liability, which includes a special events blanket rider, bonding (crime), and directors' and officers' insurance.
505.3 Insurance Purchase	The AAUW California general fund budget will provide for the purchase of insurance programs.
505.4 Insurance Billing of Branches	The state office will bill branches and any other AAUW entity in California wishing to be covered by the state insurance for the cost of their insurance coverage each year. In order to be eligible for coverage from the state insurance policy, all members of the AAUW entity must be members of the state organization.
	The branch or AAUW entity's share of the total premium is determined using a sliding scale based on membership as of February 1 of the prior AAUW year. Payment due date is set each year by the Chief Financial Officer.
505.5 Additional Insurance Coverage	Some special projects and programs of the state or branches may require additional insurance coverage for the specific needs of the project or program. Purchase of any needed special projects and events insurance riders are the responsibility of the project/program planners. To obtain insurance riders, the project/program manager should contact the insurance representative to initiate the insurance procedure. The cost of the insurance rider premium will be the sole responsibility of the project or program.

505.6 Locations/ Entities Coverage	When locations or other entities require to be named in AAUW California insurance, the AAUW entity sponsoring the event will contact the insurance agent who will issue the certificate. (See the American Association of University Women California Request for Certificate of Insurance <u>HERE</u> ).
505.7 Separate Insurance	If a project or program secures its own individual and separate insurance, that insurance becomes the primary coverage, but state sponsorship is still implied of all AAUW activities.
505.8 Risk Management Compliance	All AAUW California entities will comply with all required risk management and other reporting requirements imposed by the insurance carrier(s). In terms of risk management, however, AAUW California is always a "silent partner." If members host events in private homes, transport people or minors in their cars for activities, their personal insurance is primary, and the state insurance is secondary, if there is a claim.
505.9 Own Insurance Carrier	Branches or other AAUW entities in California may choose their own insurance carrier for any real property they own. If branches/AAUW entities choose their own carrier, they must submit a copy of the policy to the AAUW California CFO for approval. If they choose to have the property covered by AAUW California insurance, they must pay an appropriate premium in addition to the premium required by the state.

#### Policy 506 – Reimbursement Procedures

506.1 Directors' and Committee Chairs Reimbursement	Directors and committee chairs attending meetings receive reimbursement for travel as follows:		
	Position Reimbursement		
	Directors	Directors will be paid travel and meal reimbursements to attend board meetings, on the condition that they attend the entire meeting.	
	Committee chairs & co-chairs Committee chairs, co-chairs, or appointed positions that are not directors shall be reimbursed for attending board meetings only if they are specifically invited to attend by the state president.		
	Members	Members who are required to attend any AAUW California meeting and who receive meal, travel and/or other reimbursable expenses but cannot attend 100% of a meeting will be required to give prior notice to the president.	
	The president will determine the necessity of attendance for less than 100% of a meeting. Without prior approval of the presider attend less than 100% of the meeting, travel reimbursement wi be reduced proportionately for any member arriving late or leav early.		
506.2 Approving an Extra Night of Lodging	If a director lives at a distance from the meeting in an area with limited airline access, the president has the authority to approve an extra night lodging for a member to attend a meeting if, in advance consultation with the meetings planner, it is determined that is the most economical way for the director to attend.		

506.3 Meals Allowed for Reimbursement	The president in consultation with the CFO will determine the meal(s) that will be allowed for reimbursement. No alternates or substitutes for board members unable to attend regularly scheduled meetings will be funded by the state budget.	
506.4 Expenses Paid for Initial Installation	Expenses incurred for an AAUW California director to conduct the initial installation of officers for a new branch will be paid from the board travel fund.	
506.5 Travel and Meal - Rates	Travel and meal reimbursement rates are to be established by the board each year in April on recommendation of the Finance Committee. Current reimbursement rates are specified in the Expense Voucher for Reimbursement HERE.	
506.6 Travel and Meals for Required Attendance	For any member required to attend a board meeting, the meetings planner shall arrange for lodging to be paid by AAUW California using master billing with the hotel, based on single occupancy.	
506.7 Reimbursable Travel Expenses	<ul> <li>The following are eligible types of expenses that are reimbursable: <u>Airfare</u></li> <li>Airfare will be reimbursed based on advance purchase coach fare (when available).</li> <li>Members are responsible for any change or cancellation penalties, except in cases where an AAUW sanctioned conference, or Annual Event is canceled or the attendee must cancel due to medically sanctioned illness of the attendee or within the attendee's family, death in the family, job-related responsibilities, or reasonable causes approved by the president.</li> <li>Exceptions to these established policies for health and other access reasons shall be reviewed for approval by the president and meetings planner upon request.</li> <li><u>Airport parking</u></li> <li>Airport parking will be covered if a long-term, lower-cost lot is used.</li> <li><u>Mileage and bridge tolls</u></li> </ul>	

	<ul> <li>If the member chooses to drive when airfare is less expensive, the member will be reimbursed at the airfare rate.</li> <li>Mileage will be reimbursed at the federal mileage reimbursement rate and will be adjusted annually in July.</li> </ul>
506.8 Non-Reimbursabl e Expenses	<ul> <li>The following are types of expenses that are non-reimbursable:</li> <li>Valet parking.</li> <li>Short-term airport parking when a less-expensive outer parking lot and shuttle are available.</li> <li>Taxi, when a free airport shuttle is available.</li> </ul>
506.9 Committees, Reimbursement	AAUW California committee/task force members receive travel and meal reimbursement for meetings they have been requested to attend. Committee meetings may be funded for travel and/or meal reimbursement upon approval of the president and the CFO and should be incorporated in their budget plan. These additional meetings are funded for all committee members.
506.10 Meetings Planner, Reimbursement	The meetings planner shall be reimbursed for travel, lodging, and meal expenses to attend board meetings and the Annual Event. The registration fees, meal, and travel expenses of the meetings planner for other statewide events on-site work shall be paid with prior approval of board.
506.11 AAUW National Convention	AAUW California will pay the registration fees, travel and meal expenses for the AAUW California president to attend the AAUW Convention, if held. In the case of co-officers, the state will pay for only one to attend.
	AAUW California will pay registration fees for directors of the board who attend AAUW Convention, not to exceed the amount the state has budgeted for AAUW Convention that year. If insufficient funds have been budgeted to pay registration fees for all directors who wish to attend the convention, preference will be given to directors who still have a year left on their term of office as director.

506.13 Vouchers - Submission	men Chie 2. For a budg 3. For e note	each committee with expenses covered in the budget, the obers must submit a voucher for reimbursement to the f Financial Officer. a director or committee chair with expenses covered in the get allotment, the voucher shall be paid upon presentation. expenses that exceed the committee budget allotment, that the Finance Committee must approve the payment. <b>Dense Voucher AAUW-California <u>HERE</u></b> ).
506.14 Vouchers - Submission to CFO	be sent	cher requesting funds from the authorized account must to the Chief Financial Officer. Follow these steps when ing a voucher.
	Step	Action
	1	Attach receipts for all expenses.
	2	If there is no receipt, submit a written explanation (required) to consider reimbursement.
		Note: Reimbursement for expenses will not be made without furnishing receipts or an explanation of why a receipt could not be obtained for the expense in question.
	3	Request the authorizing director or committee chair to sign vouchers.
		Note: Committee chairs must authorize payment for their committee members.
506.15a Invoices or Bills for Goods or Services	should b	pices or bills for goods or services from an outside vendor be submitted with a voucher to the Chief Financial Officer ments directly to the vendor.
		er may not personally pay bills totaling \$1,000.00 and seek sement without prior approval of the Chief Financial

506.15b Using AAUW California Credit Card to Purchase Goods or Service	amount, b amount of credit card AAUW Cali future stat The follow	California credit card may be used for purchases of any ut must be used for purchases of goods or services in the \$2,500 or more. Members should not use their personal s for purchases of \$2,500 or more for AAUW California or ifornia managed projects such as Tech Trek, Speech Trek or any e projects. ing procedure will be used to initiate a purchase for a state program using the AAUW California credit card:
	Step	Action
	1	The representative for the program (program director or financial liaison) will provide a completed voucher with a list of the items to be purchased and all pertinent vendor contact information for the AAUW California CFO to contact the vendor with the credit card information to complete the purchase. Relevant purchase orders, invoices, etc. are to be attached to the voucher.
	2	The AAUW California CFO or an authorized signer on the credit card will contact the vendor to complete the purchase. Once the purchase is complete the CFO will notify the project representative that the purchase is complete and provide any relevant documentation and confirmation numbers provided by the vendor.
	3	If the AAUW California Special Projects Fund serves as the fiduciary agent for the state sponsored program, once the purchase is complete the project representative will immediately submit a voucher with attached documentation (invoices/purchase orders) to the AAUW California Special Projects Fund for payment to AAUW California for the reimbursement of the purchase.
	4	The AAUW CFO will record any large purchase, such as computers, as an asset of AAUW California. Note: Such purchases by state sponsored programs are the property of AAUW California and not the program.

506.16 Denied Vouchers	<ul> <li>If the CFO declines a voucher request for reimbursement, the CFO must notify the author of the voucher of the decision and the reason within two weeks of receipt of the voucher.</li> <li>The author of the voucher may appeal the CFO's decision to the Finance Committee. The appeal must be submitted within two weeks from the receipt date of the CFO's notification of the decision declining reimbursement.</li> </ul>	
506.17 Vouchers, Submission Timeline	<ul> <li>The following is the timeline and action when submitting vouchers:</li> <li>1. Vouchers including receipts must be submitted within 45 days after the expense is incurred or in the case of telephone charges, 45 days after the date of the bill.</li> <li>2. The Finance Committee must approve payment for vouchers submitted more than 45 days after the expense was incurred.</li> <li>3. If a committee member has expenses which total less than \$25, vouchers may be held until that amount is reached.</li> <li>4. All bills for a given fiscal year must be submitted by June 10 of the same fiscal year.</li> <li>5. Vouchers including receipts must be submitted within 45 days after the expense is incurred or in the case of telephone charges, 45 days after the date of the bill.</li> <li>6. The Finance Committee must approve payment for vouchers submitted more than 45 days after the expense was incurred.</li> <li>7. If a committee member has expenses which total less than \$25, vouchers may be held until that amount is reached.</li> <li>8. All bills for a given fiscal year must be submitted by June 10 of the same fiscal year.</li> </ul>	
506.18 For an Advance	<ul> <li>For an advance to cover expenses:</li> <li>Contact the Chief Financial Officer for an advance on budgeted funds.</li> <li>Within two weeks of travel or incurrence of a non-travel expense, a voucher must be submitted listing the total expenses itemized, less the advance and showing the balance due.</li> <li>In the unusual event that the advance exceeds the expense, the balance due to AAUW California should be remitted with the final voucher.</li> </ul>	

# Policy 507 – Fundraising Guidelines

507.1 Fundraising Guidelines	<ul> <li>AAUW branches and AAUW California may raise funds if those funds are used to further the stated exempt purposes of AAUW.</li> <li>The purpose and destination of the funds must be clearly stated on all advertisements, e.g. in newsletters, newspaper articles, fliers, and social media, etc.</li> <li>The purpose cannot be changed, nor may the destination of funds be changed after the fundraiser is over; to do so would be unfair to all concerned and may also be illegal.</li> <li>To advertise that donations to a fundraiser will be tax-deductible by the donor, the destination of the proceeds from the fundraiser must be to stated Code Section 501(c)(3) charitable organizations such as AAUW Fund or the AAUW California Special Projects Fund.</li> <li>Individuals are not recognized as charitable organizations under Code Section 501(c)(3).</li> <li>Branches must follow national AAUW's Policy 208 guidelines for branch fundraising activities. State leadership shall serve as a resource to help branches understand and enact AAUW's guidelines.</li> </ul>
------------------------------------	--

## Policy 508 – Outside Funding

508.1 Grant Proposal	Follow t	hese steps when submitting a grant proposal.
Submission Steps	Step	Action
	1	Submit proposals for grant applications to the president and receive approval from the Executive Committee. (See Policy 308.2-Executive Committee Responsibilities)
	2	As part of its approval prior to the acceptance of any funds, the Executive Committee shall approve all conditions, requirements, and limitations imposed by the outside funding source and how the name of AAUW will be used.
	3	Receive approval from the board for any extension of time or broadening the scope of the project/activity/program funded from outside source(s).
508.2 Grant Proposal Approval Procedures	purpose not limit • AAU • Com • Rest • Impl	W's involvement, both short term and long range. mitment to AAUW resources (funds and member time). rictions imposed by the grantor. ication of use of the AAUW name. tional/alternative questions posed by the nature of the

# Policy 509 – Annual Report and Disclosures

509.1 Annual Fiscal Report - Requirement	An annual fiscal report shall be prepared not later than 120 days after the close of the corporation's fiscal year and made available to members.
509.1.1 Level of Detail	<ul> <li>The report shall contain in appropriate detail the following:</li> <li>A balance sheet as of the end of such fiscal year and an income statement and statement of changes in financial position for such fiscal year.</li> <li>A statement of the place where the names and addresses of the current members are located.</li> <li>Any information required by 509.1.2 below.</li> <li>A statement of any transaction of indemnification if required by Section 8322 of the California Code of Corporations.</li> </ul>
509.1.2 Audit	The annual report shall be accompanied by any report thereon of independent accountants, or, if there is no such report, the certificate of an authorized officer of the corporation that such statements were prepared without audit from the books and records of the corporation.
509.2 Required Disclosures	AAUW California shall comply with the disclosure requirements of federal and state agencies to which it is subject.

#### 600 – Annual Event

## Policy 601 – Annual Event (If an Annual Meeting)

601.1 Annual Meeting	If the Annual Event is an annual meeting, as directed by the board of directors, it shall be held on the third weekend in April if possible, to create a predictable pattern that will assist branches to plan their activities around this event. The annual meeting may be held in conjunction with another type of Annual Event, such as a convention.
601.2 Location	If the Annual Event is an annual meeting, the president and meetings planner will decide the location, if in-person, with the approval of the Executive Committee. See Policy 602.2.
601.3 Reimbursement	All officers, the parliamentarian, the meetings planner, and any board or committee member required to attend the Annual Meeting at the request of the president to make a report at the meeting, shall receive reimbursement for the day for the following:
	<ul> <li>Registration fees</li> <li>Lodging (as well as lodging the night before the event if travel limitations and timing of the meeting require the participant to arrive the day before the annual meeting)</li> <li>Travel</li> <li>Meal expenses</li> </ul>
	Participants are expected to work with the meetings planner to find the most economical travel and lodging combination that allows them to fulfill their roles to attend at the least cost to AAUW California.

## Policy 602 – Annual Event (If a Convention)

602.1 Overview	If the Annual Event is a convention, as directed by the board of directors, it should be scheduled whenever possible on the third weekend in April, in order to give branches a predictable pattern around which to schedule their own activities. The convention may include the Annual Meeting as well as workshops, speakers and other mission-based activities.
602.2 Location	If the Annual Event is an in-person convention, subsequent events shall alternate location between the northern and southern regions of the state. Effort should be made by the meetings planner to have the locations rotate among the districts over the years, but the primary considerations in determining the location must be cost, accessibility, and overall suitability for the event. The location shall be announced at the prior Annual Event.
602.3 Theme and Programming	The theme of the convention will be decided by the planning team and announced no later than August. In consultation with the board, other state committees, and the Annual Event planning team, the Program Committee is responsible for evaluating and selecting workshop proposals and selecting keynote speakers.

602.4 Budget	<ul> <li>If the Annual Event is a convention, the meetings planner and Annual Event manager must work with the CFO to develop the budget. Pre-convention forums, etc. shall be self- supporting. The convention budget shall provide for:</li> <li>Meal reimbursement for directors and appointed committee chairs per guidelines in Policy 506.</li> <li>Lodging for directors per guidelines in Policy 506.</li> <li>Travel and meal reimbursements for the local arrangements chair and the assistant to the president. If there are co-chairs for local arrangements, reimbursements will be provided for only one.</li> <li>All positions entitled to the worker registration rate.</li> <li>Registration, travel, lodging, and meal reimbursement for the president, Annual Event manager, and other key personnel designated by the president.</li> <li>Cost of printing and copying, A/V equipment, etc. for speakers and workshop presenters.</li> <li>Costs for preparation and mailing of the pre-convention packet and the layout/design and printing of the convention insert if one is to be distributed to all members in an appropriate communication or publication.</li> <li>A complimentary convention meal for past state presidents.</li> <li>Travel and meal reimbursement for each member of the convention planning team to attend a convention planning meeting.</li> </ul>
602.5 Fees - Approval	Convention fees shall be set high enough to cover administration, program, printing, and future planning expenses. The board shall approve the convention fees, including fees for anyone to attend just the Speech Trek state finals without attending the rest of the convention.

602.6 Fees - Payment	<ul> <li>For payment of convention fees:</li> <li>Payment of registration fees is required for attendance and participation in the convention.</li> <li>All refund requests must be in writing, postmarked 10 days prior to the first day of the event.</li> <li>All cancellations are subject to a processing fee to be set annually by the Finance Committee.</li> <li>Except for full cancellations, meal resale will be the sole responsibility of the attendee.</li> </ul>
602.7 Fees - Discounted Fees	<ul> <li>A discounted worker registration fee shall be set for those making significant contributions to the smooth running of the convention.</li> <li>To be eligible for this discounted rate, the member MUST sign up for volunteer assignment through the local arrangements chair in advance or have his/her name submitted to be included in the list of convention workers.</li> <li>Those eligible for the worker rate are: <ul> <li>Any AAUW California member who volunteers a minimum of six hours during the convention.</li> <li>State board members, state appointed positions, or state committee members who are one of the following: <ul> <li>Workshop presenter (name submitted to local arrangements chair by Annual Event manager).</li> <li>Required personnel for conducting the Annual Meeting portion (name submitted to local arrangements chair by the state president).</li> <li>Convention volunteer worker for a minimum of three hours.</li> </ul> </li> </ul></li></ul>
602.8 Reimbursement	<ul> <li>Conditions for reimbursement:</li> <li>Any expense that exceeds the budgeted amount or any non-budgeted expense must have prior approval of the CFO.</li> <li>The CFO must approve all vouchers for conferences and convention expenses. All vouchers must be submitted within 45 days of close of the convention.</li> </ul>

602.9 Sales	<ul> <li>Guidelines for sales at the Convention:</li> <li>Branches or the state may sell items benefiting the AAUW fund raising programs, and those consistent with AAUW's mission, program, and at conferences and the convention. Branches must assume all liability for damage or loss of items on display for sale.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>The board may decide, at its discretion, to allow outside vendor sales at the state convention or other meetings. Revenue received from vendor sales will be designated to support the convention's operating budget.</li> <li>Written proposals, signed contracts, and waivers of liability must be received by the meetings planner prior to the commencement of sales. All agreements with outside vendors for convention considered contracts and are approved and signed by the state president on behalf of AAUW California.</li> </ul>

#### 700 - Communications

## Policy 701 – Publications

701.1 Membership Publications - Overview	The Communications Committee prepares and distributes the <i>California</i> <i>Connection</i> , a monthly e-newsletter sent to all AAUW California members. The publication provides news and information about the state's programs, projects, elections, events, and other activities in a lively format to engage branch members. The Communications Committee compiles and electronically distributes the monthly <i>Board to Board</i> containing important and timely information directed toward branch leaders. The Communication Committee may also prepare and publish other publications, electronic or printed, to be sent directly to members.
701.1.1 Advertising in Membership Publications	Advertisements may be considered for placement in AAUW California publications if appropriate. These may be submitted by AAUW members, AAUW affiliated entities and AAUW coalition and marketing partners. The Communications Committee must approve advertising and may reject advertising incompatible with AAUW's mission. Advertisement rates and instructions are available from the AAUW California state office. See Policy 702-Internet Guidelines for information about website link advertising.
701.2 Administrative Packet - Overview	<ul> <li>The AAUW California office prepares the branch administrative packets in accordance with the schedule that the state president develops. Costs, if any, are funded through the state budget.</li> <li>Branch administrative packets consist of:</li> <li>Letters by directors and committee chairs to their branch counterparts</li> <li>A list of directors and committee chairs</li> <li>A work calendar</li> <li>Any items of information that need branch attention</li> </ul>
701.2.1 Administrative Packet Distribution	<ul> <li>Distribution will be electronic to the following:</li> <li>All directors, appointed chairs, IBC chairs, committee chairs, and branch presidents, including those holding shared positions.</li> </ul>

701.2.2 Pre- Annual Event Packet	If necessary pursuant to the type of Annual Event to be held, a pre-meeting packet containing items pertinent to conducting AAUW California meeting business may be prepared and must be approved by the president, Annual Event manager and meetings planner. The AAUW California office produces and distributes the packet.			
701.3 Special Publications - Definition	AAUW California may undertake special publications that have specific goals or objectives, a limited term, and are not addressed elsewhere within the current AAUW California program.			
701.3.1 Special Publications – The Creation Process	<ol> <li>The state president will appoint an ad-hoc committee and will receive, review, and make recommendations regarding publication projects.</li> <li>If funding is necessary, the committee will submit recommendations to the finance committee regarding funding the publication project and request a specific budget allotment.</li> <li>The president will then facilitate the approval and implementation of recommendations of the ad-hoc committee, including the following:         <ul> <li>Assisting in the development and execution of publications</li> <li>Reviewing and approving final drafts of publications</li> <li>Reporting all publications recommended for approval by the ad-hoc committee to the board for authorization</li> <li>Approving, funding and naming a project manager responsible for implementing the publication project as approved by the board</li> <li>Monitoring the progress of the project</li> <li>Receiving that all insurance, risk management, and legal requirements of the publication project are met</li> </ul> </li> </ol>			

701.3.2 Special Publications – Requirements	<ul> <li>A written proposal must be submitted for each new publication project.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Each publication project will be evaluated according to its relationship to its:         <ul> <li>mission, purpose and priorities</li> <li>proposed goals, objectives, and action plan</li> <li>time frame</li> <li>budget</li> <li>evaluation procedures</li> </ul> </li> <li>The AAUW Style Basics shall be followed and if appropriate, pagination shall be designed so that pages may be added or removed easily.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>A publication project begun but not completed in one fiscal year shall show reasonable progress to have continued funding for a second year; no incomplete project shall be funded for a third year.</li> </ul>

# Policy 702 – Website Usage and Internet Guidelines

702.1 Purpose and Authority – Overview	The AAUW California website, www.aauw-ca.org, (referred to as the state website) and online communications provide information and services that further the AAUW mission to advance gender equity for women and girls through research, education, and advocacy. Content focuses on all aspects of AAUW at the state level in California and is a benefit and service to further AAUW California's nonprofit and tax-exempt status. Use of social media is governed by commonly accepted guidelines developed by the state Communications Committee. See AAUW California Communications Committee Social Media Guidelines <u>HERE</u> .	
702.1.1 Purpose	The purpose of this policy is to maintain the integrity of AAUW California on the internet and in other online communications and to avoid the use of AAUW California's name in ways inconsistent with its image, mission, policies, and programs.	
702.1.2 What is Covered	<ul> <li>The policy is binding to:</li> <li>Any entity or individual who uses, accesses, or links to the state website— including logos, written content, photographs, graphics, video, and audio.</li> <li>Use of, access to, or linkage to the state website which constitutes acceptance and agreement and is bound by the terms in this policy.</li> <li>AAUW California has the right to restrict or revoke access to any entity or individual who violates any provision of this policy.</li> </ul>	
702.1.3 For Inquiry	Any inquiries about the state website or this policy should be directed to webteam@aauw-ca.org or office@aauw-ca.org.	
702.2 Content of State Website - Development	AAUW California staff and leaders develop the state website content and the AAUW California Communications Committee maintains the website for distinct audiences.	
702.2.1 Three Distinct Audiences	<ul> <li>The three distinct audiences are:</li> <li>AAUW members, e.g., branch leaders, branch members, national members, college/university partners and student affiliates</li> </ul>	

	Office staff		
	Public and prospective members		
702.2.2 Member Website Usage	AAUW members may use the content of the state website in the following ways:		
	1. For AAUW branch websites and online notices for AAUW activities.		
	<ol> <li>To access standardized logos and placement specifications that adhere to the rules of the member center at <u>www.aauw.org</u>, the website of national AAUW, our parent organization.</li> </ol>		
	<ol> <li>To access and reprint materials in accordance with this policy if credit is given to the AAUW California website and usage is consistent with AAUW's mission, policies, and programs.</li> </ol>		
	<ol> <li>For marketing (with prior approval from AAUW California) on the state website to market, sell products, or raise funds across state lines, including marketing, sales, and fundraising via the internet.</li> </ol>		
	<ol> <li>To promote branch events on the state website calendar page if the events are open to the public or multiple branches, a major branch fundraiser, or a collaboration with a college/university partner member or like-minded coalition organizations.</li> </ol>		
	6. To use the branch locator and links to California branch websites.		
	7. To sign up for California Action Alerts.		
	The state website may not be linked to or used for personal or professional financial or political gain by any member.		
702.2.3 Office Staff Usage	Office staff may use the state website in publications, newsletters, online notices, and other materials in furtherance of AAUW's mission and consistent with policies and programs with the approval of the president.		
	The state website cannot be linked to or used for personal or professional financial or political gain.		
702.4 Links – How Used	The state website links only to: branch, IBC or national AAUW websites, related links from those websites or the website of a board-approved coalition organization of national AAUW or AAUW California.		
	<ul> <li>Links other than those identified above must be submitted to the Communications Committee chair for approval to assure their content's adherence to AAUW's mission, program and policies.</li> </ul>		

	<ul> <li>If, in the opinion of the Communications Committee chair, the link may not meet that standard, it shall be submitted to the Executive Committee for approval prior to posting.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>AAUW California is not responsible for any content on sites or web pages linked from the state website. Since AAUW California does not control those websites, individuals are encouraged to review the privacy and other policies posted on these third-party sites.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>AAUW California does not support or endorse any activities on third party sites that may not be consistent with AAUW 's mission, policies, and programs.</li> </ul>	
702.5 Privacy on Website and Other Electronic Communications - Overview	AAUW California is committed to protecting the privacy of people who use the state website. Visitors to the state website remain anonymous, and AAUW California does not attempt to obtain or retain personally identifiable information except as specifically stated.	
702.5.1 Use of Identifiable Information	Personally identifiable information may occasionally be requested, such as when a user sends a secure contribution or registers for an email list. Like many nonprofit organizations, AAUW California may obtain the names of potential supporters by renting membership lists of like-minded organizations and publications. Sometimes, instead of paying the rental fee, AAUW California	
	exchanges its list with another group's list for a single use approved by the board. By receiving mail from other similar groups, AAUW California grows its programs and services.	
702.5.2 Personal Information in Emails	Personal information in emails sent to staff or AAUW California leaders will be used to answer questions, address problems or complaints, or otherwise improve service. Users should be aware that with any electronic communication, interception by unauthorized third parties is possible, so they may wish to transmit particularly confidential or sensitive information by regular mail instead.	
702.5.3 Guidelines for Publishing Personal Information	<ul> <li>The state website will publish personal information with the following guidelines/restrictions:</li> <li>Names will be hyperlinked and forwarded to personal email addresses with the permission of the individual. If desired, the individual can request an alias within the aauw-ca.org domain.</li> </ul>	

	For example: the president will have her/his name linked to email through statepresident@aauw-ca.org.
	<ul> <li>Photos taken at AAUW events may be posted on the state website without the permission of the people appearing in the photo. When a photo has been posted, the names of those appearing in the photo may also be posted; but names will not be added to candid shots unless explicit permission has been received from those appearing in the photo.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Anyone who objects to his/her contact information or picture being posted in this way may contact the Communications Committee chair or the AAUW California president. The information/picture will be removed as quickly as possible.</li> </ul>
702.6 Email Lists – How Used	The state Communications Committee and office manager will create and manage email group lists for branch and state leaders. Members will be subscribed automatically to those lists based on their leadership position(s).
	State board and committee email groups are restricted to the members of those groups, but any AAUW California member may request subscription to the mail group lists used for branch broadcasts.

#### **800 – Nominations and Elections**

#### Policy 801 – Nominations to State Board

801.1 Nomination Process Stages		Nominations to the AAUW California state board of directors follows this process:		
	1	The Nominations and Elections Committee chair will confer with the Communications Committee chair on the upcoming publication dates that will affect the publication of candidate information on the AAUW California website and in other appropriate communications.		
		The Nominations and Elections Committee chair will present the AAUW California board with a recommended calendar of deadlines for the submission of nominations. The deadline for candidate submissions must be no later than 30 days prior to the commencement of balloting (members are to be notified of the slate of candidates at least 30 days prior to balloting).		
	2	The board sets the deadline for electronic submission of nominations based upon the recommendations of the Nominations and Elections chair. Candidate submissions will include the following items: photos, goal statements and Board Candidate Nomination Form approved by the Nominations and Elections Committee and posted on the website <u>HERE</u> .		
	3	No later than six (6) months prior to the election, the Nominations and Elections chair shall notify all members of AAUW California of the director and officer positions open for election and request nominations. Such notice will be posted on the AAUW California website and communicated using all other appropriate methods as determined by the Communications Committee in collaboration with the Nominations and Elections Committee. (Reference: AAUW California Bylaws: Article XI. Nominations and Elections, Section c)		
	4	Each candidate submits, via the AAUW California website, correctly completed AAUW California Board Candidate Nomination Form, , recent photos, and a goal statement of no more than 75 words. Each candidate may also submit a two-minute video that will be posted on the state website's candidate page.		

		All information submitted by the candidate must be accurate. No additional information may be requested of the candidates by any person or entity other than the Nominations and Elections Committee.
	5	All candidate information must be received by the deadline set by the board of directors.
		The designated contact on the Communications Committee will provide the Nominations and Elections chair with regular updates of candidate information received.
		No candidate information is posted to the website for general membership access without the express approval of the Nominations and Elections chair.
	6	After the submission deadline, additional individuals wishing to become candidates may submit the required candidate information via the AAUW California website up until, but no later than, 30 days prior to the start of balloting.
		The Nominations and Elections Committee may also seek and propose additional qualified candidates up until 30 days prior to the scheduled start of balloting.
	7	There will be space provided on the ballot for write-in candidates.
	8	The Nominations and Elections Committee is responsible for preparing the election ballot and submitting it to the entity that has been identified to conduct the online balloting.
		The Nominations and Elections Committee places all candidates on the elections slate for each position in the order of the date their candidate information was received online via the AAUW California website.
	9	The Nominations and Elections Committee provides each candidate with complete information and guidelines pertaining to the nomination and election process.
	10	All candidates are required to sign an agreement that affirms that their nomination documents are accurate and that they will abide by campaign rules. (See Policy 805 – Election Guidelines).

	11	The names of the nominees for elected office shall be published and distributed to every member at least 30 days prior to the election. (Reference: AAUW California Bylaws, Article SI: Nominations and Elections, d.)
		Each voting member of AAUW California will receive the slate of candidates and their individual information directly from AAUW California using available and appropriate communication methods. The same information will be posted on the AAUW California website.
		The information posted will include a photo, goal statement, branch affiliation from each candidate and a two-minute video if submitted.
		Additional nominations submitted after candidates have been published in AAUW California communications will be posted along with the original slate on the state website in the order they are submitted.
	12	The Nominations and Elections Committee posts the AAUW California Board Candidate Nomination Form and goal statements on the members' only portal of AAUW California website. Hard copy of this information will be furnished to branch presidents upon written request to the AAUW California office.

# Policy 802 – Campaign Rules for Candidates

802.1 Candidate Campaign Rules		llowing is a list of the campaign rules for candidates running for California state office:
	Nu m.	Campaign Rule
	1	All nominees that the Nominations and Elections Committee proposes or that are write-in candidates shall be bound by these policies. Each person running as a co-officer will be duly elected individually as one of the eleven elected directors' positions.
	2	Candidates running as a co-position are each considered an individual candidate under California Corporate Regulations and each candidate, if elected, exercises an individual right as a member of the board of directors. Each candidate for co-positions will have the same space on the state website and other appropriate platforms as an individual candidate.
	3	Candidates shall submit to the nominating committee a signed copy of the campaign rules agreement and agree to abide by the campaign and election procedures and spending limits. Candidates shall instruct their workers regarding these campaign policies and restrictions. The campaign rules are incorporated in the AAUW California
		Board Candidate Nomination Form located <u>HERE</u> and signed therein.
	4	Candidates may prepare a two-minute video for posting on the website at any time during the campaign. Prior to posting, the Nominations and Elections chair will preview the video for compliance and then authorize the Communications Committee to post the video.
		Candidates are restricted to the posting of their photo, goal statement, branch affiliation, and campaign video on the AAUW California website. No other campaign messages may be posted.

	Candidates are free to set up an independent website for their campaign and may refer the membership to that website in the online video.
5	Candidate listing on the AAUW California website, other appropriate communications selected by the Communications Committee in consultation with the Nominations and Elections Committee and on the ballot will be based upon the date the candidate's AAUW California Board Candidate Nomination Form is received.
6	Candidates' goal statements, photos and branch affiliation(s) will be published on the AAUW California website and other appropriate communications channels if they are received by the deadline.
7	Candidates will be introduced at the Annual Event. If it is an in-person convention, there will be a table for candidates to display/distribute campaign literature and candidates are free to circulate and campaign. There will be no formal campaign speeches at the Annual Event, regardless of its format
8	<ul> <li>Informal meetings with voting members at AAUW California in-person events include:</li> <li>Not making speeches.</li> <li>Limiting meetings with voting members and distributing campaign literature to designated spaces in the common areas of the Annual Event.</li> <li>Meeting informally and not as part of the meeting agenda.</li> <li>Understanding that the physical setup will be determined before each meeting by the organizing entity and will depend on the number of candidates and the available space.</li> </ul>
9	Candidates may ask for branch and member endorsements. The use of AAUW California stationery or AAUW California email systems to endorse or support candidates for statewide office is prohibited in order to avoid any appearance of the state organization's endorsement. Currently seated members of the board of directors are encouraged to take a neutral position on candidates running for

	office. If a director chooses to make an endorsement that director must do so without mentioning their position as a currently seated AAUW California director or officer.
10	Candidates may request the member list from the state office and will be billed for any costs associated with procuring that list. Candidates are limited to no more than two US mailings and two email campaign distributions to members.
	Campaign mailings or emails must originate from the candidate or the candidate's supporters, not from any official AAUW California communications network.
11	All campaign mailings, including electronic distributions, must bear an indication of candidate approval.
12	There are no limits on candidates' travel to visit branches and/or Interbranch Councils. These are considered informal gatherings and campaign rules do not permit candidate speeches at those meetings. Distribution of campaign materials is permitted.

# Policy 803 - Candidate Campaign Finances Guidelines

803.1 Candidate Finance Rules	The following is a list of the campaign rules related to finance for candidates running for AAUW California state office:	
	1	There is no requirement nor expectation that candidates spend ANY funds on campaigning. If candidates choose to do so, they must have a campaign treasurer to handle all donations (cash and in-kind), bookkeeping, and reporting. The Nominations and Elections chair will be advised of the person serving as a candidate's campaign treasurer and that person's contact information.
	2	Candidates may raise funds or donate to their own campaign to support their campaign activities and to cover expenses of attending the Annual Event, if held in-person. Campaign expenses are not reimbursable by AAUW California.
	3	There is a spending cap of \$750 for director races and the offices of CFO and secretary. The spending cap for president elect is \$1000.
	4	The capped amount for officer/director races shall include all expenses by the candidate and his/her supporters including the value of in-kind donations, but excluding campaign travel, photos for AAUW California publications, and AAUW California Annual Event expenses if held in person (registration, travel, food, and room). Expenses within the capped spending amount include additional photos for brochures or other uses, graphic design, printing, promotional pieces (buttons or other such items), postage, mailing labels, telephone calls, supplies for set-up for "meet the candidates" events, and receptions held at the Annual Event prior to the elections (put on by individuals, branches, or other entities for the purpose of promoting the candidate).
	5	All candidates shall submit expense reports to the AAUW California office on April 1 and June 1. Receipts, including signed receipts from in-kind donors, will accompany reports. The reports will be forwarded to the Nominations and Elections chair to be checked for compliance, errors and omissions.

### Policy 804 - Ballot Measures

804.1 Ballot Measures 804.2 Ballot Measures - Requirements	Candidates may not purchase advertising in any AAUW California state publication, including Annual Event programs. Candidates may purchase advertising space in branch newsletters if the policy of the branch permits it. The ballot includes, along with candidates running for state positions, any measure requiring a membership vote.		
804.3 Ballot Measures – Procedures	<ul> <li>These measures may include at a minimum:</li> <li>Public Policy Priorities (in odd-numbered years).</li> <li>Resolutions.</li> <li>Bylaws amendments that require a vote of the general membership for approval (per Article XXII of the AAUW California Bylaws).</li> <li>Change in state dues.</li> <li>The following is a list of steps to be followed in placing ballot measures on the ballot.</li> </ul>		
	Step	Action	
	1	<ul> <li>Each committee chair responsible for a ballot measure item gets approval for the final language of the measure as it is to appear on the ballot.</li> <li>Public Policy Priorities – Public Policy Chair</li> <li>Resolutions – Parliamentarian</li> <li>Bylaws Amendments (including change in state dues) – Governance Chair</li> </ul>	
	2	Each committee chair responsible for a ballot measure ensures that the ballot measure, any background rationale, and fiscal impact analysis, if relevant, is published in the appropriate and available AAUW California communications and posted on the state website at least 30 days prior to voting.	
	3	Each committee chair responsible for a ballot measure submits to the Nominations and Elections chair the ballot measure along with rationale and fiscal impact analysis, if relevant, to be included in the election materials being made available to the branches and general membership along with the candidate information.	

4	Each committee chair responsible for a ballot measure ensures that the Nominations and Election chair has the exact language of the measure as it is to appear on the ballot.
	of the measure as it is to appear on the ballot.

### Policy 805 - Election Guidelines

805.1 Election Guidelines	discuss will be If logist will fac session	ion forum for the members re available from March 15 <sup>th</sup> unti ically possible, a member of tl	ne board of the appropriate committee ediately before or after the business
	1	Once the nominations are c	losed,
		If	Then
		There are no ballot measures that require a membership vote, and There are no contested elected positions,	all candidates will be considered duly elected at the close of the annual meeting.
	2	officers, is eleven (11). Whe the director positions, exclu	California directors, including the n there are contested elections for ding the officers, the positions are director in descending order of votes re filled.
	3	In the case of a contested el candidate with the majority	lection for an officer's position, the vote is elected.
	4	for an officer position, the s	of votes that two candidates receive uccessful candidate will be of lots that the Nominations and

	Per AAUW California Bylaws, election will be by plurality if there are three (3) or more candidates for a position or are more nominees than positions to be filled for directors
5	If a director, in the middle of her/his two year-term, runs for and is elected to an officer position, the director resigns her/his directorship upon the start of her/his term as officer. The vacancy created by this resignation will be filled by appointment by the president and approved by the AAUW California Board of Directors. In the event there was a contested election and there were candidates that were not elected to a directorship, consideration will be given by the board to filling the vacancy with one of those candidates. This is a recommendation and not a mandate.
6	The Nominations and Elections chair is responsible for notifying the candidates of the election results prior to the election results announcement to the general membership. Once this is complete the Nominations and Elections chair will notify the Communications chair of the results and give the go ahead for posting to the website and other electronic communications to the general membership. The announcement of the election results will be posted for the membership on the AAUW California website and announced through electronic and/or other means of communication as soon as possible after the close of the election and the validation of the election results by the Nominations and Elections chair.
7	The Nominations and Elections Chair/Committee has full oversight of the election process and puts protocols in place for a fair and unbiased election. All entities that collaborate to provide the membership with information and balloting are accountable to the Nominations and Elections Chair/Committee.
8	All members voting in an AAUW California election must be members of AAUW California. Each member is entitled to one vote. Once a vote is cast it cannot be changed or withdrawn. If a member feels they made an error in casting their ballot due to technical issues the Nominations and Elections chair will be contacted and will make the final determination if the member may re-cast their vote.

9	The Nominations and Elections Committee will provide information to the membership via the monthly Board to Board (B2B) newsletter, the AAUW California website and any appropriate written communications on the election process prior to the balloting to ensure each member has a clear understanding of the process and election guidelines.
10	The Nominations and Elections chair is responsible for procuring the elections vendor for the purpose of balloting. This can be an independent vendor or an entity/person within AAUW California who reports to the Nominations and Elections chair, who has the final say on all election protocols. All balloting methods used for the elections will respect the privacy of the voter. All election results and tallies will be destroyed six months following the election and the destruction of the data will be verified in writing to the Nominations and Elections chair.
11	Per AAUW California Bylaws (Article XI Nominations and Elections, Section 2. Elections (a)), elections will be held in which all members may vote in person (if available), electronically, or by mail. The Nominations and Elections chair will work in consultation with the president, the Communications Committee, and the ballot vendor (if used) to determine the process by which the electronic, by mail, or in person voting (if available) will take place. The process will be outlined in detail, with relevant deadlines and reporting expectations, prior to implementing the process. If the general membership list for AAUW California is obtained from National, a member of Nominations and Elections or the ballot vendor or individual will verify that the list does not contain members-at-large who reside in California and are not members of AAUW California. Only members of AAUW California are entitled to vote in AAUW California elections.
12	The balloting period will be open for three (3) weeks.
13	The Nominations and Elections chair, in consultation with the Communications Committee, will ensure that all archival elections data (guidelines, candidate profiles, etc.) are scrubbed from the AAUW California website prior to the posting of the current election year data.

#### 900 - Committees

### Policy 901 – Committees, Appointments and Chairs

901.1 Committees	The board may establish standing committees, special committees and task forces, composed of any number of AAUW California members.	
901.2 List of Standing Committees	Standing committees are appointed as described in 901.5. Not all committees must be active and staffed each year, as that will vary in response to changing state initiatives and the organization's needs. New committees may be formed as needed, particularly as an outcome of the annual board goal-setting retreat. A preliminary call for volunteers may be issued to gauge the committee's viability. Committees will be formally recognized and added to the Policies and Procedures upon board approval of a written description of their policies similar to that of other committees, including purpose, composition, duties, etc.	
	A committee which has been unstaffed for two (2) years will be considered inactive and removed from the Policies and Procedures upon board approval. This process will be monitored by the Governance Committee. Committees might include, but at not limited to, those below:	
	<ul> <li>AAUW Fund (See Policy 903)</li> <li>Branch Activity of the Year (See Policy 905)</li> <li>Branch Support (See Policy 907)</li> <li>Communications (See Policy 909)</li> <li>Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (See Policy 913)</li> <li>Marketing (See Policy 925)</li> <li>Finance (See Policy 915)</li> <li>Internal Audit (See Policy 921)</li> <li>Governance (See Policy 917)</li> <li>Gov Trek (See Policy 919)</li> <li>Leadership Development (See Policy 923)</li> <li>Membership (See Policy 927)</li> <li>Nominations and Elections (See Policy 929)</li> <li>Program Committee (See Policy 931)</li> <li>Public Policy (See Policy 935)</li> <li>State Projects Oversight (See Policy 933)</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>State Projects Oversight (See Policy 933)</li> <li>College/University Partners Committee (See Policy 911)</li> </ul>	

901.3 Establishing Special Committees	<ul> <li>Special committees and task forces shall be:</li> <li>Established as necessary and given a charge by the board.</li> <li>Composed of a chair and at least one other member, appointed by the president with the approval of the Executive Committee, and will serve until the charge is carried out.</li> </ul>
901.4 Committee Appointments, Eligibility	Any member of AAUW California in good standing is eligible to apply to serve on a state committee, state project, or task force. The Executive Committee must approve a member's eligibility to serve on more than one committee. Appointments to serve on a committee or state project are for a one-year term, unless otherwise noted in that committee's policy. Except for the Nominations and Elections Committee, if a committee is not chaired by a sitting director, a director will be assigned as a liaison to that committee to facilitate communication between the committee and the board.
901.5 When Committees are Appointed	The chairs of all standing committees are appointed no later than June for the upcoming program year. The newly appointed chairs shall review all applications for their committees, assist in recruiting additional applications as needed, and make recommendations to the president.
901.6 Who Appoints Committee Members	Committee appointments are made by whichever officer will be president in the upcoming year: the president in odd-numbered years (the year before the second year of the president's two-year term) or the president- elect in even-numbered years (the year before the president-elect becomes president).
901.7 State Program Directors	<ul> <li>State program directors are appointed by the president with Executive Committee approval.</li> <li>If the project follows the same fiscal year as AAUW California, the appointment procedure and timeline is the same as used for all other committee appointments.</li> <li>If the project's fiscal year is the calendar year, applications should be submitted to the office by November 30 and appointments should be made no later than December 20.</li> </ul>

901.8 Committee Appointment Procedures	Commit	cedure for appointments, except for the Nominations and Elections tee chair and members (See Policy 929-Nominations and Elections tee), follows these steps.
	Step	Action
	1	The president submits a call for appointments as an electronic file for posting on the website and other appropriate channels no later than January.
	2	All board and committee members, particularly the district liaisons, actively recruit applicants and encourage branches to advertise the application process in branch newsletters and meetings.
	3	Members submit applications to the state office by the specified deadline, usually in April or May.
		(See <b>AAUW California Committee Application</b> available online. Click <u>HERE)</u> .
	4	The president or president-elect reviews all applications and prepares an appointment list for all committees and appointed positions.
	5	The president presents the proposed appointment list to the board for its review and consultation. The directors must receive at least one week to respond with any recommendations for changes or additions.
	6	The president or president-elect finalizes the appointments and directs the office manager to respond to all applicants no later than June 15, notifying them of their appointments, or to thank them if they were not appointed, encouraging them to reapply in the future.
	7	The Executive Committee must approve appointments after June 15 and those requiring early appointment for more than a one-year term, such as the meetings planner.

901.9	The general responsibilities of all committee and task force chairs
Committee Chairs,	The general responsibilities of all committee and task force chairs include:
General Responsibilities	<ul> <li>Convening the committee, determining the work plan, and organizing and coordinating the committee's work.</li> <li>Working with committee members to update the annual strategic plan with measurable goals and strategies related to the committee's charge.</li> <li>Promoting AAUW's mission to advance equity for all women and girls and the programs of AAUW.</li> <li>Identifying, mentoring and recommending members for appointment to committees and task forces of the state.</li> <li>Receiving state and board communications and, when appropriate, contributing articles and materials for state communications to branch leaders and members.</li> <li>Attending meetings as requested by the president.</li> <li>Representing AAUW California in approved coalitions.</li> <li>Participating in workshops at the Annual Event and at district or interbranch council meetings</li> <li>Being aware of and complying with financial policies and procedures regarding board, committee meeting and Annual Event attendance and reimbursement of administrative and travel expenses.</li> <li>Maintaining and updating an experience notebook and appropriate files during term in office. Files should contain detailed procedures, a record of disbursement of budgeted funds, copies of materials submitted for mailings, board and committee minutes for past year and helpful reference material.</li> <li>Keeping in files AAUW and AAUW California bylaws, policies and procedures.</li> <li>Making recommendations for necessary changes to the policies and procedures following the instructions in Procedure to Amend Policies and Procedures located HERE.</li> <li>Being familiar with all phases of AAUW and working closely with all officers and chairs.</li> <li>Updating the online AAUW California strategic plan form quarterly with reports of progress toward stated goals.</li> <li>Performing other duties as requested by the president.</li> </ul>

901.10 Committee	The general responsibilities of all committee and task force members are to:
Members Duties	<ul> <li>Attend any scheduled meetings, whether by conference call, online or in-person, as appropriate.</li> <li>Participate actively in the continuing work of the group.</li> <li>Maintain communication with the committee and its chair.</li> <li>Respond in a timely manner to group communications.</li> <li>Complete assigned tasks.</li> </ul>

### Policy 903 – AAUW Fund Committee

903.1 Composition	The AAUW Fund committee is a standing advisory committee composed of a chair, the CFO, and others as the board may direct.
903.2 Purpose	Provides guidance and support for branch fundraising activities to encourage donations to the AAUW National Fund. Plans a minimum of two AAUW Fund in-person or virtual Fellows and Grant Recipient presentations and other programs/events to educate members about the Fund.
903.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs. The duties of AAUW Fund Committee chair also include:</li> <li>Holding at least one meeting of the AAUW Fund Committee, assigning duties to committee members, and aiding and supervising them in their work.</li> <li>Being responsible for implementing the programs established by theAAUW National board.</li> <li>Promoting the mission of the AAUW programs – such as fellowships, grants, and named funds – to branches, members and the community.</li> <li>Educating and informing members and others about AAUW programs through the dissemination of news and information.</li> <li>Fostering teamwork and partnerships between branch and state leaders serving AAUW.</li> <li>Planning, with the assistance of the AAUW Fund Committee, events at which time AAUW fellowship recipients and grant recipients are introduced to the members.</li> <li>Submitting a budget to the president and CFO for each in-person event.</li> <li>Submitting, within 30 days of completion of an event, a financial report of the event and its fiscal impacts on AAUW California.</li> <li>Arranging attendance of current fellowship recipients and grant recipients at the various events.</li> <li>Maintaining Fund information files and providing materials and information to members.</li> <li>Planning, in conjunction with appropriate directors and the</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>meetings planner, all AAUW Fund activities at statewide meetings.</li> <li>Reporting to branches a preliminary calendar year report of total and per capita contributions at the Annual Event with a final</li> </ul>

<b>F</b>	
	report communicated to all AAUW California members when available.
	<ul> <li>Review the nominations submitted and choose the state named gift honoree, subject to board approval.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Schedule and coordinate branch visits by fellowship recipients and grant recipients. Fellowship recipients and grant recipients of AAUW Fund are selected by the AAUW National Board of Directors.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Branches are limited to one visit from a current fellowship or grant recipient every other year. If there is a greater availability of fellowship or grant recipients in a given year, branches may obtain more frequent visits.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Branches are encouraged to hold scholar speaker presentations at IBC events.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Inform branches that recipients must be allowed at least twenty minutes to speak. Branches are to provide transportation, meals, and lodging when appropriate and an honorarium of \$100 and mileage reimbursement using the AAUW California mileage rate.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Schedule and coordinate the visits of fellowship recipients and grant recipients to state meetings. One or more members of the committee may be designated schedulers by the committee chair.</li> </ul>
903.4 AAUW Fund	AAUW Fund financial policies include the following:
Financial Policies	<ul> <li>Donor contributions made by check, rather than through the AAUW National AAUW's online donation platform, must be made payable to AAUW Fund.</li> </ul>
	• All checks must include the name of the branch to receive credit.
	<ul> <li>Checks may include direction from the donor on how the money is to be designated.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Donor contributions, given at state events or given directly to a state AAUW Fund committee member or the chair and made by check or cash shall be sent directly to AAUW with the appropriate donation form.</li> </ul>
	• All direct donation checks for AAUW Fund and all AAUW Fund contributions collected by branches because of fundraisers shall

be sent to AAUW National as soon as possible but no later than December 31.
• Rules of confidentiality prevent the AAUW Fund Committee from publicizing specific donor contribution amounts. AAUW Fund reports are authorized by AAUW National staff to be sent to branch AAUW Fund VPs and branch presidents for accuracy and verification. The AAUW California Fund chair notifies branch officers that specific donor contributions are confidential.
<ul> <li>AAUW Fund Committee determines designations of AAUW Fund Assessment (as defined in Policy 504) by December 15 each year. Assessment funds are sent to National prior to December 20.</li> </ul>

### Policy 905 - Branch Activity of the Year Award Committee

905.1 Composition	Branch Activity of the Year Award Committee is a standing committee, composed of the chair and others as the board may direct.
905.2 Purpose	The Branch Activity of the Year Award Committee assists the chair in identifying branches with unique and inspiring mission-based activities.
905.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs.</li> <li>In addition, the duties of the Branch Activity of the Year Award Committee chair are to:</li> <li>Create a process to identify unique and inspiring mission-based activities that are aligned with the annual success plan.</li> <li>Notify award winner(s).</li> <li>Consult with award winners on presentation at the Annual Event.</li> <li>Provide regular updates to the board of directors or leadership team on the committee's activities and needs.</li> <li>Prepare and monitor the annual committee budget.</li> </ul>
905.4 Committee Member Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members.</li> <li>In addition, the duties of the Branch Activity of the Year Award Committee members are to assist with:</li> <li>Identifying criteria by which to select the Branch Activity of the Year Award.</li> <li>Developing an application process including timeline.</li> <li>Developing a communication process to solicit submissions.</li> <li>Evaluating submissions and identifying award winner(s).</li> </ul>

# Policy 907 – Branch Support Committee

907.1 Composition	The Branch Support Committee is a standing committee, composed of a chair and district liaisons from the eleven districts in the state. Districts may have more than one representative on the committee, but the committee should ideally have at least one representative from each district.
	The district liaisons may be, but are not limited to, Interbranch Council (IBC) chairs. District liaisons who are IBC Chairs serve the branches in their IBC. Branches that do not belong to an IBC are served by a district liaison for the district.
907.2 Purpose	The Branch Support Committee provides guidance and resources to branches in all areas of their operation. Branch Support assists with the formation, merging, and disbandment of branches, and educates branches on alternative leadership models.

907.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs.</li> <li>In addition, the Branch Support Committee chair does the following:</li> <li>Gives guidance to and communicates with district liaisons throughout the year assisting them in identifying the specific needs of branches and IBCs, and the best way to address those needs.</li> <li>Prepares a committee budget that provides for adequate travel expenses for the district liaisons to visit each branch they serve at least once every other year and for non-IBC liaisons to attend all multi- branch meetings.</li> <li>Obtains list of IBC meeting dates from liaisons and communicates with liaisons prior to and after each meeting focusing on questions, suggestions, problems, and exemplary practices identified.</li> <li>Serves as a vehicle to link IBCs and branches to AAUW California through information from district liaisons.</li> <li>Forwards information supplied by liaisons about promising practices to chairs of appropriate committee(s) to support branches by providing successful models for replication.</li> <li>Notifies chair of appropriate committee(s) about problems/questions/suggestions reported by liaisons. In some cases, multiple committees should be informed to be able to work as a team to resolve issues, including, but not limited to, Program Committee, Public Policy Committee.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Notifies chair of appropriate committee(s) about problems/questions/suggestions reported by liaisons. In some cases, multiple committees should be informed to be able to work as a</li> </ul>

907.4 Committee Member Duties	See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs.
	The members of the Branch Support Committee are the district liaisons. The duties of the district liaisons are to aid, support and maintain branches within the designated area assigned to them and serve as the coordinator/resource for the state.
	The district liaisons are to:
	<ul> <li>Maintain continuing contact with state and national leadership team members and local designated area and aid as a resource to help meet branch needs, including membership recruitment and retention, mission-based program planning, and leadership training.</li> <li>Work with state leaders to arrange branch visits as needed.</li> <li>Attend all IBC or multi-branch meetings of branches they serve as regularly as possible and ask for time on IBC meeting agendas.</li> <li>Request newsletters and directories from branches they serve to become better informed of branch activities and write occasional "Did You Know?" articles for branch newsletters.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Encourage branches to advertise their events on the state website.</li> <li>Increase communication between branches and encourage branches to work together on programs and community projects.</li> <li>Communicate with the Leadership Development Committee about specific leadership and training needs in the areas they serve and about the content of leadership training.</li> <li>Encourage mission-based programming and remind branches of resources available through AAUW California and National.</li> <li>Assist in keeping branches informed and engaged in membership recruitment and retention strategies provided by the Membership Committee.</li> <li>Encourage support for AAUW Fund including attendance at Fund events, request for fellowship recipient speakers, and increased contributions.</li> <li>Encourage the establishment and maintenance of college/university partnerships.</li> </ul>

907.5 Committee Member Duties	<ul> <li>Recruit members to serve on the state and national level by:         <ul> <li>Encouraging members to apply for state appointments and run for state and national AAUW elected positions.</li> <li>Encouraging branch leaders to solicit committee applications and nominations for capable members.</li> <li>Recruiting Nominating and Elections Committee members from the branches they serve.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Include the committee chair in all communications to branch presidents.</li> <li>Participate in leadership training and workshops at the Annual Event, as requested.</li> </ul>
907.6 Establish New Branches	<ul> <li>The Branch Support Committee facilitates the establishment of new branches by:</li> <li>Investigating leads for new community areas, notifying nearby branches and establishing personal contact with organizers.</li> <li>Visiting a petitioning group desiring to form a branch and discussing the programs of AAUW and the desirability of organizing a branch. The chair may designate an official representative to act in her/his stead.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Providing a prospective branch with forms and explaining the procedure to chartering a new branch. The chair also obtains AAUW California board approval for branch formation and sends appropriate forms to AAUW National Membership department. The committee offers the new branch assistance throughout the chartering process and for its first two years.</li> </ul>

907.7 Implementing Changes in Branch Structure	<ul> <li>The Branch SupportCommittee is responsible for implementing all changes in branch structure by reviewing requested branch name changes. The chair, or a designated committee member, does the following:</li> <li>1. Presents a motion to approve the name change to the AAUW California board.</li> <li>2. If approved, obtains the necessary state signatures.</li> <li>3. Sends the request to AAUW National Membership Department/Branch Relations.</li> <li>4. When approved, notifies state board, membership and Governance Committee.</li> </ul>
907.8 Informing Branches on Governance Models	The Branch Support Committee is responsible for informing branches on alternative governance models other than the traditional AAUW officer positions to assist those branches that may be experiencing challenges in recruiting members for leadership positions.
907.9 Disbandment	<ul> <li>The Branch Support Committee instructs branches on the procedure for disbandment should a branch vote to disband and supplies the necessary forms if requested. The chair does the following:</li> <li>1. Presents a motion to the AAUW California board.</li> <li>2. If approved, obtains the necessary state signatures.</li> <li>3. Sends documents to the AAUW National Membership departmentNotifies appropriate groups as above.</li> <li>4. Notifies appropriate groups as above.</li> </ul>
907.10 Seeking Informal Merger	The Branch Support Committee chair works with two branches seeking an "informal" merger in which a troubled branch melds into a stronger branch. The chair does the following: 1. Instructs branches on procedure to follow.

	2. Presents the request to the board.
	3. If approved, obtains president's signature.
	<ol> <li>Sends the document to the AAUW National Membership department.</li> </ol>
	5. Notifies the appropriate groups as above.
907.11 Seeking Formal Merger	The Branch Support Committee chair works with two branches seeking a formal merger (both branches relinquish their charters and become a new branch with a new name). The chair does the following:
	<ol> <li>Requests the state Governance Committee to assist the branch in writing their bylaws and furnishes template(s).</li> </ol>
	2. Obtains approval of bylaws from the Governance Committee.
	3. Presents the motion to the board for approval.
	<ol> <li>If approved, the chair sends the completed form to the national AAUW Governance Committee and to the national AAUW Membership Department.</li> </ol>
907.12 Tracking Branches	The Branch Support Committee tracks branches making above changes and helps as needed.
907.13 Transferring Members	The Branch Support Committee provides information to transferring members to assist them in finding a branch or branches in their new location.

## Policy 909 – Communications Committee

909.1 Composition	The Communications Committee is a standing committee composed of the technical team, the creative services team , and such others as the board may deem necessary.
909.2 Purpose	The Communications Committee develops and delivers AAUW California information to branches, members, and the public using a variety of media channels and technology tools. It is tasked with managing the publication of the monthly Board to Board and the California Connection e-newsletters, maintaining the AAUW California website and social media sites, and reviewing and editing materials to be distributed or posted. In addition, the committee seeks opportunities to market AAUW both internally and externally and assists the AAUW California Board of Directors and other committees with communication needs.
909.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs.</li> <li>In addition, the duties of the Communications Committee chair are to: <ul> <li>Assure the staffing of a creative services team to handle preparing or reviewing state materials and communications.</li> <li>Assure the staffing of a technical team to handle AAUW California's internet presence and electronic communications.</li> <li>Provide advice and assistance to branches that request help regarding communication.</li> <li>Monitor the preparation and editing of written communications by the creative services team.</li> <li>Manage the workload of the teams.</li> <li>Give guidance on communication strategies, including the best channels for submitters' proposed communications.</li> <li>Identify opportunities for broader marketing and branding opportunities for proposed communications.</li> <li>Participate in the planning of AAUW California events and webinars.</li> <li>Consult with the president and leadership team to ensure the accurate reporting of state-hosted events/activities.</li> <li>Provide regular updates to the board of directors or leadership team on the committee's activities and needs.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
909.4 Committee Members	See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members.

Duties	Committee members assist the chair with meeting the purpose and goals of the committee and are generally assigned to either the technical team or the creative services team.
--------	---

909 F	The technical team has overall responsibility for AAUWA California's
909.5 Technical Team	The technical team has overall responsibility for AAUW California's internet presence, electronic communications, and social media accounts. The team:
Duties	<ul> <li>Accounts. The team:</li> <li>Manages relationships with website support vendors to assure online resources are available.</li> <li>Works closely with the internet host provider and website consultant to be aware of new trends and developments.</li> <li>Manages Google environment to assure AAUW California resources are available to authorized users and secure from unauthorized use, including: <ul> <li>Email aliases and Google groups</li> <li>Google account</li> <li>Google domain</li> <li>Security access to resources</li> </ul> </li> <li>Manages technical resources and accounts to assure access and availability to AAUW California resources such as Mailchimp and SurveyMonkey.</li> <li>Works with AAUW California office manager to maintain current data lists that support AAUW California operations including synchronization with AAUW National records.</li> <li>Trains committee members, office staff and board members in the administrative functions of the website and database appropriate for their use.</li> <li>Manages website resources including the web calendar, document, and media libraries.</li> <li>Assures that all images used on the website are in the public domain or are legally purchased.</li> <li>Maintains the branch officer reporting system and email broadcast systems.</li> <li>Facilitates distribution of Board to Board monthly newsletter to all branch leaders. the California connection e-newsletter to all members, and branch newsletter distribution to interested AAUW California leaders.</li> <li>Is an administrator of the AAUW California social media accounts and pages and manages posts to ensure the following: <ul> <li>The information is accurate.</li> <li>Postings relating to public policy priorities. Postings may not jeopardize the organization's 501(C)(4) status.</li> <li>Comments are managed.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

<ul> <li>Prepares a budget for the website and sends it to the committees chair for inclusion in the overall committee budget.</li> <li>Provides technical support for webinar delivery, including managing their scheduling and staffing.</li> <li>Executes surveys and similar information-gathering campaigns.</li> <li>Executes online registrations for AAUW California events.</li> <li>Executes the nomination and election process in collaboration with the Nominations and Elections Committee.</li> <li>Coordinates the graphics design of communications, including such things as copy layout, art work, logos, etc. and assures adherence to AAUW National style guides.</li> <li>May offer occasional training sessions on relevant topics related to the use of technology.</li> </ul>

909.6	The creative services team:
Creative Services Team Duties	<ul> <li>Reviews and suggests edits to communications to assure they follow AAUW California editing guidelines and demonstrate consistency of messaging and grammatical correctness. Communications include such items as broadcast emails to state distribution lists, website postings, monthly Board to Board and the California Connection publications, social media postings, survey content, committee documents, meeting and workshop content, marketing campaigns, etc.</li> </ul>
	See Board to Board (B2B) Submission Guidelines HERE and B2B
	Submission Form in Forms and Documents HERE.
	<ul> <li>Works with the technical team leader and the chair, if appropriate, to manage interactions between requesters and the creative services and technical teams.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Maintains an editing guide to assure consistency in messaging, format, language, and mechanics adhering to generally accepted style guides.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Works with webinar presenters and members of the technical team to craft effective presentations and assure high standards for the content, the slide presentation, and the delivery.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Develops guidelines and forms to assist with collecting information for distribution or publication.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Works with other team members to assist state and branch leaders with the strategic planning of communication campaigns and projects.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Assists state and branch leaders with effective information gathering, including preparation of surveys, polls, questionnaires, etc.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>On request, works with committees to review updates to their website content and forms.</li> </ul>

### Policy 911 - College/University Partners Committee

911.1 Composition	The College/University (C/U) Partners Committee consists of a chair and as many other members as deemed necessary by the board.
911.2 Purpose	The College/University (C/U) Partners Committee coordinates and administers the AAUW College/University Partnership Program for AAUW California to foster relationships with California academic institutions. The committee seeks to build awareness and engagement with the AAUW mission by C/U faculty, staff and students.
911.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of committee chairs.</li> <li>In addition, the College/University Committee chair:</li> <li>Maintains responsibility for the overall recruiting of accredited colleges/universities within California as partners with AAUW.</li> <li>Retains an up-to-date list of all current C/U partners along with a campus contact for each institution and shares this information with AAUW California branches via the state website, publications and electronic means.</li> <li>Encourages the appointment of branch C/U chairs who will assist in recruiting strategies.</li> <li>Supports C/U branch chairs through motivation, technical assistance and resource sharing.</li> <li>Ensures the renewal of AAUW partner C/U's each year.</li> <li>Provides regular updates to the board of directors or leadership team on the committee's activities and needs.</li> <li>Prepares and monitors the annual committee budget, if appropriate.</li> </ul>

(On hiatus as of July 2021; absorbed in Membership Committee as of July 2022)

911.4 Committee Member Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of committee members.</li> <li>In addition, committee members assist the chair with accomplishing committee goals and tasks, including:</li> <li>Encouraging branches to reach out to potential C/U partners in their geographic area and supplying them with recruitment materials and mentoring advice.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Promoting AAUW national, state and branch membership by reaching out to faculty, staff and students.</li> <li>Educating C/U partner students regarding their AAUW membership as E-Student Affiliates.</li> <li>Working with the branches to make sure they communicate with C/U campus liaisons and encouraging collaboration on programs, projects, events.</li> <li>Encouraging branch interaction with Student Affiliates and E-Student Affiliates by obtaining a list of the latter from the national member services database (MSD).</li> <li>Maintaining a supply of student brochures and AAUW publications to share with campus liaisons and with branches.</li> </ul>
911.5 Encourage Collaboration	The College/University Partners Committee encourages branches to collaborate with local C/U campuses and educate the branches on the various programs AAUW has established for college-age women. These programs are:
	<ul> <li>NCCWSL (National Conference for College Women Student Leaders)</li> <li>AAUW Campus Action Projects (CaliforniaP)</li> <li>National Student Advisory Council (SAC)</li> <li>AAUW California Financial Literacy projects: \$tart\$mart and Money Trek</li> </ul>
	The college/university partners also disseminate information describing AAUW grants and fellowships.

# Policy 913 – Diversity, Equity, Inclusion (DEI) Committee

913.1 Composition	The Diversity, Equity, Inclusion Committee (DEI) is a standing committee composed of a chair and other committee members as the board may direct.
913.2 Purpose	The DEI Committee supports branches to increase their commitment to diversity, equity and inclusion (DEI) with an emphasis on increasing DEI awareness, engagement of branch members in DEI activities, and connecting with other organizations that promote DEI.
913.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of committee chairs.</li> <li>In addition, the DEI Committee Chair: <ul> <li>Has overall responsibility for developing, coordinating, administering, and evaluating an ongoing, comprehensive development program to meet the needs of the state and the branches.</li> <li>Consults with the board on specific leadership development and training needs in the state, districts and branches.</li> <li>Oversees communication with branch DEI coordinators/office liaisons to assist them in identifying their specific needs for their branches.</li> <li>Acts as a resource person and liaison within AAUW California.</li> <li>Assists with Annual Event planning.</li> <li>Encourages the appointment of DEI coordinators at branches.</li> <li>Encourages tranch participation in the national Five-Star recognition program and keeps branches informed of Five-Star recognition criteria related to DEI.</li> <li>Provides regular updates to the board of directors or leadership team on the committee's activities and needs.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

913.4 Committee Member Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.10 for general committee member responsibilities.</li> <li>In addition, DEI Committee members:</li> <li>Serve as a committee liaison with branches.</li> <li>Assist the committee chair in promoting the national DEI program by increasing awareness of the program, providing references to DEI resources, and assisting branches in actively incorporating DEI activities.</li> <li>Help the committee expand DEI programs through participation in communication and awareness-building programs such as webinar presentations.</li> <li>Help branches build programs as part of the Five-Star program by working with the branch DEI coordinators /officers.</li> <li>Take part in brainstorming and creating DEI activities, materials and communications customized for California to assist the chair with realizing committee goals.</li> <li>Help develop collaboration strategies/tactics with other organizations</li> </ul>
-------------------------------------	--

## Policy 915 – Finance Committee

915.1 Composition	The finance committee is a standing committee composed of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) as chair and a minimum of two additional members.
915.2 Purpose	The Finance Committee administers all critical financial matters essential to the operation of AAUW California. It also informs branches of all financial requirements and deadlines and assists them with financial management, including holding educational webinars for branch finance officers and board members.
915.3 Chair Duties	The Finance Committee is chaired by the CFO. See Policy 306 - Chief Financial Officer for a description of responsibilities. Also see Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs.

915.4 Committee Member Duties	See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members.
	In addition, the Finance Committee members assist the CFO in all aspects of AAUW California financial management, including:
	<ul> <li>Preparing AAUW California budget for approval by the board at the July Board of Directors' meeting, if possible, but no later than August 15.</li> <li>Studying, preparing and reviewing requests for changes in budgets and submitting recommendations to the board for approval at the January Board of Directors' meeting.</li> <li>Reviewing biennially in even-numbered years, in consultation with the board, the state dues for branch members and National members and recommending changes if necessary. If the board approves a change in state dues, the Finance Committee is responsible for submitting the proposal as it is to appear on the ballot to the Nominations and Elections Committee by the designated deadline(s) for inclusion in appropriate publications determined by the Communications Committee in consultation with Nominations and Elections.</li> <li>Reviewing and recommending travel and meal reimbursement rates for the following year to the board for adoption at its spring meeting.</li> <li>In consultation with the Communications Committee, reviewing and setting advertising rates for appropriate AAUW California publications.</li> <li>Reviewing and setting the price for providing mailing labels, in consultation with the office manager and president. (See Policy 203-</li> </ul>
	Release of Member Information to Third Parties).

915.4 Committee Member Duties, continued	<ul> <li>Studying special funding requirements of the proposed state projects, programs and special committees and making recommendations for board action, if needed.</li> <li>Administering, reviewing and updating the financial policies of the state posted on the AAUW California website.</li> <li>Making recommendations to the board as a result of the CPA firm review when it is presented to the board.</li> <li>Reviewing and making recommendations regarding the state insurance programs.</li> <li>Assisting the CFO in all aspects of Annual Event fund management and preparing a financial report following each annual event.</li> <li>Participating in needed actions to complete strategic plan goals as developed as a team at the start of the fiscal year.</li> <li>Attending the annual Planning Day, if held, and participating in at least two teleconferences a quarter. Committee members must be willing to work independently to research pertinent issues and to coordinate with branches and outside entities.</li> <li>Providing support to branch finance officers by answering questions, creating finance-related content for the website and presenting educational webinars.</li> <li>(See also Policy 306, Chief Financial Officer; and Policy Section 500, Financial Administration).</li> </ul>
915.5 Investment Subcommittee	The Investment Subcommittee is a subcommittee of the Finance Committee, reporting to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). It is composed of a chair who is a voting member of the Finance Committee, the CFO, and a minimum of one additional member or consultant. The CFO shall serve as the board liaison for the subcommittee. The chair, members and consultants shall have investment or financial experience. A consultant is a member of AAUW California who is willing to participate in investment subcommittee meetings, advise and perform tasks as requested by the chair, without assuming the full set of responsibilities of a subcommittee member.
915.5.1 Purpose	It is expected that AAUW California's long-term funds (the "Portfolio") will be in the custody of a qualified custodian and managed by a qualified third-party investment manager. The purpose of the Investment Subcommittee is to select the custodian and investment manager and also advise the board on the status of investments in accordance with AAUW California investment policies (Policy 503).

915.5.2 Responsibilities of Subcommittee	<ul> <li>In carrying out its purpose, the investment committee, under the direction of the Chair and the CFO, shall:</li> <li>Understand AAUW-California's investment goals and how these objectives support the mission of AAUW-California as laid out in Policy 503.</li> <li>Evaluate investment performance of the Portfolio on a quarterly basis, taking into account investment performance relative to established benchmarks, and compliance with Investment Policy 503.</li> <li>Provide reports on investment results to the CFO to report at each board meeting or as required.</li> <li>Recommend changes to custodian and third-party investment manager to the board, if needed, and make changes as approved.</li> <li>Formulate and propose for approval updates to Investment Policy 503 as needed, at minimum every two years.</li> <li>Carry out such other responsibilities as may from time to time be assigned to the committee by the CFO.</li> </ul>
915.5.3 Additional Responsibilities of Chair	The Chair has overall responsibility for the Investment Subcommittee and will carry out all responsibilities as specified in Policy 301.
915.5.4 Terms, Recruitment, Meetings, Minutes, Reports and Records	This subcommittee will follow policies as per Policy 901.
915.5.5 Conflict of Interest and Declarations of Interests	All subcommittee members and consultants shall adhere to AAUW's Conflict of Interest and Ethics Policies as outlined in Policy 313.

#### Policy 917 – Governance Committee

(July 2021,2022: Not staffed. Single contact person only.)

917.1 Composition	<ul> <li>Governance serves as a standing committee. The committee is composed of a chair and a minimum of one additional member. Additionally:</li> <li>The AAUW California Parliamentarian serves as a consultant.</li> <li>The AAUW California office manager serves as a resource to the Governance Committee.</li> <li>The AAUW California office is the official repository and technical support on formatting and publication of AAUW California Policies and Procedures and any other relevant governance documents.</li> </ul>
917.2 Purpose	Provides oversight on all governance-related issues for AAUW California and its member branches.

<ul> <li>Works with committee member(s) to provide guidance to branches and interbranch counsels (IBCs) regarding branch and IBC governance documents and related questions.</li> <li>Assures that all national mandated changes to the AAUW California Bylaws are made as directed.</li> <li>Oversees the review and updating of the AAUW California Policies and Procedures and the AAUW California Bylaws.</li> <li>Oversees the online process for updating Policies and Procedures by reviewing, editing, approving, and incorporating amendments suggested by approved members of the state leadership team. Advances suggested changes of a substantive nature to the board of directors for approval.(See "Procedure to Amend Policies and Procedures" <u>HERE</u>.)</li> <li>Works with the state office and the Communications Committee technical team on the timely posting of current governance documents (Bylaws, Policies and Procedures) to directors and committee chairs at the beginning of the AAUW California year.</li> <li>Prepares a committee budget. That includes the expenses for updating and filing of all governance documents as needed and required to meet state and federal regulations.</li> <li>Conducts bylaws briefings at state meetings as requested.</li> </ul>
Committee.

917.4 Committee		901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members.
Member Duties	<ul> <li>Assist the above.</li> <li>Assist we available of the second s</li></ul>	with branches to resolve routine governance issues and help th alternative leadership structures if requested. The branches on the bylaws and Policies and Procedures and with assuring compliance with AAUW National and California andates. The members of the forward and help chair track compliance. The members of the Governance Committee are to review fornia bylaws in even-numbered years and propose
	amendmen Step	nts or changes as needed. The committee follows these steps. Action
	1	Submits proposed state bylaw amendments, including rationale, to each member of the board at least ten days prior to the meeting at which the amendments are to be acted upon. The rationale must contain financial implications, if any.
	2	Note that amendments to the AAUW California Bylaws which require an "every member" vote (refer to Article XXII Section 1 AAUW California Bylaws) are prepared by the Governance Committee. These amendments also require a rationale and financial implications.
		<b>See</b> : Step/Action 6 for member notification on member required voting for amendments.
	3	Provides AAUW with updated copies of the AAUW California Bylaws as required by the national governance and compliance officer.

4	Sends a copy of the amended bylaws to the California Secretary of State whenever there are significant amendments or a revision.
5	Provides the office staff and the Communications Committee technical team with copies of the amended bylaws for printing and/or posting on the website.
6	Sends text of proposed amendment as it is to appear on the ballot and supporting rationale to the Nominations and Elections Committee chair by the designated deadline(s) for inclusion in all appropriate publications for any bylaws amendment that would require a membership vote of approval.

### Policy 919 – Gov Trek Committee

919.1 Composition 919.2 Purpose	<ul> <li>The Gov Trek committee is a standing committee composed of a chair, who is the Gov Trek Program Director, and as many additional members considered necessary by the board. The committee should be balanced, represent all constituencies , and limited to AAUW California branch members.</li> <li>Gov Trek is a virtual statewide program for junior and senior girls attending a California public, private, home, or continuation high school. It is designed to elevate a new generation to pursue careers in public service and elected office.</li> </ul>
919.3 Chair Duties	See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs. The Gov Trek Program Director oversees the entire state project in collaboration with the Gov Trek Committee and is the liaison between the branches and the state organization. The appointment is for a one-year term by the AAUW California president, with the term of office running from July 1 to June 30. Individuals holding this position may be reappointed for up to five one-year terms.
919.3.1 Gov Trek Program Director Qualifications	<ul> <li>AAUW California member in good standing</li> <li>Good organizational, communication, and people skills</li> <li>Basic knowledge of budgets and familiarity with Google Apps and Microsoft Office</li> <li>Accepted by the AAUW California Board of Director as meeting all requirements of an AAUW California committee chair</li> <li>Knowledge of government service and public policy</li> </ul>
919.3.2 Gov Trek Program Director Duties	<ul> <li>If applicable, secures the funding for the project.</li> <li>Prepares a project budget, based on the available funds. Submits the proposed budget to the AAUW California Board of Directors for review and approval prior to the July AAUW California Board of Director meeting.</li> <li>Ensures a historical list of branch participation is maintained to track branch contacts and the project's growth.</li> <li>Communicates with branches to encourage them to participate and assist them.</li> <li>Submits Gov Trek Information packet to be uploaded to the AAUW California website.</li> <li>Provides articles about the project and highlights deadlines through all state communications, including:</li> <li>Board-to-Board publication from state to branch leadership</li> <li><i>California Connection</i> to all members</li> <li>AAUW California website</li> <li>Social media</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>Maintains content on the Gov Trek web page on the AAUW California website, including the Information Packet, contest winners and the winning campaign simulation.</li> <li>Assembles, invites, trains, and oversees volunteers participating in the program.</li> <li>Reviews all forms and makes revisions and updates in consultation with the Communications Committee.</li> <li>Prepares annual report to the AAUW California Board of Directors at the close of the program year.</li> <li>Performs such other duties as requested by the AAUW California president.</li> </ul>
919.4 Committee Member Duties	See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members. The duties of the members of the Gov Trek Committee are to provide assistance, guidance and support to meet committee goals through research, assessment and the gathering of resources for the Gov Trek program.
919.5 Breakout Room Facilitator	<ul> <li>Manages students in a Zoom breakout room. Facilitators help students stay on task, assist with the understanding and implementation of assigned activities, and facilitate collaboration among the group for active participation.</li> <li>Must be 18 or older, but no specialized expertise is required. Public speaking, speech writing, communications, and political campaign management experience are helpful, but not required. The desire to help participants successfully complete their activities and projects is essential.</li> <li>Must be a member of AAUW in good standing.</li> <li>Will be provided training by the Gov Trek Committee.</li> <li>Must read and comply with the AAUW California Bullying Prevention Guidelines.</li> </ul>
919.6 Gov Trek Judges	<ul> <li>Must be 18 or older.</li> <li>Must have specialized expertise in political campaign management, speech writing, public speaking, media communications, or related experience.</li> <li>Will review campaign simulation contest submissions and provide constructive feedback to contestants, deliberate, and award prizes in a live Zoom webinar.</li> <li>Will receive training and a judging rubric.</li> </ul>
919.7 Gov Trek Committee Branch Liaison	The Gov Trek Committee Branch Liaison is a Gov Trek Committee member assigned to work with branches at their request for assistance in helping recruit students and promoting Gov Trek in the local community

919.8. Gov Trek	The Gov Trek Branch Coordinator is responsible for coordinating the
Branch Coordinator	branch efforts to recruit high school junior and senior girls from the local
	community to participate in Gov Trek.

### Policy 921 – Internal Audit Committee

(On hiatus as of August 2022)

921.1 Composition	The Internal Audit Committee is a standing committee composed of a chair and a minimum of two additional members. At least one member will be from the general membership. Candidates for a position on the committee should not only understand the concept of auditing financials and processes but have had direct experience. They also should have a minimum of two years as a member of AAUW. Familiarity with QuickBooks is a plus. No current officer of the board or their immediate predecessor may serve as a committee member or the chair. The committee may be chaired by a current board director who is not currently an officer or
921.2 Purpose	<ul> <li>immediate past officer.</li> <li>The committee's primary function is to assist the board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to the audit of the organization's books and records, and the system of internal controls that are established.</li> <li>The committee is the liaison between the board and external auditors. The committee should have a clear understanding with the outside auditors that they must maintain an open and transparent relationship with the committee, and that the ultimate accountability of the outside auditors is to the board and committee.</li> <li>The committee is granted the authority to investigate any matter or</li> </ul>
	activity involving financial accounting and financial reporting, as well as the organization's internal controls. In that regard, the committee will have access to the organization's external professionals to render advice and counsel in such matters.
921.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs. In addition, the Internal Audit Committee chair:</li> <li>Assists the board in all aspects of AAUW California fiduciary management.</li> <li>Recommends plans for an audit to the board by the end of each fiscal year.</li> <li>Prepares request for proposal for outside auditing services and recommends to the board the selection, retention, or termination of</li> </ul>

921.4       See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee         921.4       See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members.		
<ul> <li>Assures the board that the financial statements properly reflect the organization's financial condition.</li> <li>Reviews adequacy of internal controls.</li> <li>Monitors compliance with laws, regulations, and conflict-of-interest policies.</li> <li>Meets periodically via conference calls, email and other electronic means.</li> <li>Reviews with the board and outside auditors significant accounting and reporting principles, practices, and procedures applied when preparing financial statements. Discusses with the outside auditors their judgments about the quality, as well as the acceptability, of the accounting principles used in AAUW California financial reporting.</li> <li>reports in writing to the board at their regular meetings, when appropriate.</li> </ul>		the outside auditors. Communicates with the board the quality of the organization's financial and accounting personnel.
921.4         Committee         921.4         Committee		Reviews interim and annual financial statements.
<ul> <li>Monitors compliance with laws, regulations, and conflict-of-interest policies.</li> <li>Meets periodically via conference calls, email and other electronic means.</li> <li>Reviews with the board and outside auditors significant accounting and reporting principles, practices, and procedures applied when preparing financial statements. Discusses with the outside auditors their judgments about the quality, as well as the acceptability, of the accounting principles used in AAUW California financial reporting.</li> <li>reports in writing to the board at their regular meetings, when appropriate.</li> </ul>		
policies.• Meets periodically via conference calls, email and other electronic means.• Reviews with the board and outside auditors significant accounting and reporting principles, practices, and procedures applied when preparing financial statements. Discusses with the outside auditors their judgments about the quality, as well as the acceptability, of the accounting principles used in AAUW California financial reporting.• reports in writing to the board at their regular meetings, when appropriate.921.4 CommitteeSee Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members. The Internal Audit Committee member assist the chair as needed to		Reviews adequacy of internal controls.
921.4 CommitteeSee Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee member assist the outside for the second to be additioned to be addi		
<ul> <li>and reporting principles, practices, and procedures applied when preparing financial statements. Discusses with the outside auditors their judgments about the quality, as well as the acceptability, of the accounting principles used in AAUW California financial reporting.</li> <li>reports in writing to the board at their regular meetings, when appropriate.</li> <li>921.4 See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members. The Internal Audit Committee member assist the chair as needed to the second seco</li></ul>		
921.4     See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members.       The Internal Audit Committee member assist the chair as peeded to		and reporting principles, practices, and procedures applied when preparing financial statements. Discusses with the outside auditors their judgments about the quality, as well as the acceptability, of the
Committee The Internal Audit Committee member assist the chair as needed to		
Member Duties       Internal Addit Committee member assist the chair as needed to fulfill the committee's responsibilities.	Committee	See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members. The Internal Audit Committee member assist the chair as needed to fulfill the committee's responsibilities.

### Policy 923 – Leadership Development Committee

#### (On hiatus as of July 2021, July 2022)

923.1 Composition	The Leadership Development Committee is a standing committee composed of a chair and other committee members as the board may direct.
923.2 Purpose	The Leadership Development Committee Is responsible for developing, coordinating, administering, and evaluating a systematic, ongoing, comprehensive leadership development and training program to meet the needs of the state and the branches.
923.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of committee chair.</li> <li>In addition, the Leadership Development Committee chair:</li> <li>Consults with the board on specific leadership development and training needs in the state, districts and branches.</li> <li>Consults with district liaisons and assists them in identifying their specific leadership development and training needs for branches.</li> <li>Acts as a resource person and liaison on training/leadership development issues within AAUW California.</li> <li>Assists with Annual Event planning.</li> <li>Provides regular updates to the board of directors or leadership team on the committee's activities and needs.</li> <li>Prepares and monitors the annual committee budget.</li> </ul>
923.4 Committee Member Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of committee members.</li> <li>In addition, the committee members:</li> <li>Help design and offer training modules to districts and branches.</li> <li>Work with the district liaisons in developing the content of the annual leadership training event(s).</li> <li>Assist in Annual Event planning.</li> <li>Take part in presenting leadership training and workshops, as requested.</li> <li>Take a role in providing board training, if appropriate.</li> </ul>

# Policy 925 – Marketing Committee

(On hiatus July 2022)

925.1 Composition	The Marketing Committee is a standing committee, composed of the chair and others as the board may direct. Members should have marketing experience.
925.2 Purpose	The purpose of the Marketing Committee is to increase the visibility of AAUW California and identify specific markets to expand and enhance membership.
925.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of committee chairs.</li> <li>In addition, the duties of the Marketing Committee chair are to:</li> <li>Create a marketing plan in conjunction with the Marketing Committee.</li> <li>Work with the Communications Committee and other committees, as appropriate, to create and implement an overall marketing plan.</li> <li>Identify strategies and tools to use to communicate with specific markets and audiences, emphasizing targeting messages to engage unique audiences.</li> <li>Report to the board on marketing projects.</li> <li>Ensure that the funds are allocated</li> <li>Ensure that all marketing efforts follow the policies and policies of AAUW California and AAUW National.</li> <li>Prepare and monitor the annual committee budget.</li> </ul>
925.4 Committee Member Duties	See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members. Marketing Committee members assist the chair with identifying and implementing strategies to meet the purpose and goals of the committee.

# Policy 927 – Membership Committee

927.1 Composition	The Membership Committee is a standing committee composed of a chair, a College/University Liaison, and as many other members as deemed necessary by the board.
927.2 Purpose	The Membership Committee assists and educates branches and members in attaining branch growth goals, including for membership recruitment, using effective marketing strategies across all channels, as well as retention strategies, oversees the formation, disbandment and merger of branches, and educates branches on alternative leadership models. [1]
927.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of committee chairs.</li> <li>In addition, the Membership Committee chair: <ul> <li>Holds Membership Committee meetings to train committee members, distribute materials, set goals, develop action plans for the year, and delegate tasks to assist branches.</li> <li>Works with the district liaisons, if assigned, and uses all channels of forms of electronic and print state communications to keep branches informed and engaged in membership recruitment and retention strategies.</li> <li>Works with the national and state offices to formulate and distribute membership statistics.</li> <li>Assists branches by sharing suggestions of practical membership growth activities that use proven marketing strategies appropriate for local branches.</li> <li>Provides regular updates to the board of directors or leadership team on the committee's activities and needs.</li> <li>Prepares and monitors the annual committee budget.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

927.4 Committee Member Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.10 for general committee member responsibilities.</li> <li>In addition, Membership Committee members: <ul> <li>Suggest effective methods for branches to recruit, orient and retain members.</li> <li>Endeavor to strengthen and increase membership in the state through the establishment of new branches.</li> <li>Serve as a liaison between branches and the AAUW California board of directors.</li> <li>Communicate with branches through electronic and printed mailings, branch visits, IBC meetings and workshops.</li> <li>Assist branch membership vice presidents in the implementation of AAUW and AAUW California membership policies and programs.</li> <li>Provide a written report of activities to the membership chair to include in updates to the state strategic plan.</li> <li>Serve as a member of the district or IBC team. As such, the committee members attend those meetings when possible and perform other duties as assigned by the chair.</li> <li>Assist in Annual Event planning. The Membership Committee takes part in presenting membership workshops and trainings at the Annual Event and any other state or district meeting.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
927.5	<ul> <li>The Membership Committee identifies a specific role as</li></ul>
College/Universit	College/University (C/U) Liaison. The C/U liaison is responsible for: <li>Developing College/University partner memberships and recruiting</li>
y Liaison	student affiliates.

## Policy 931 – Program Committee

931.1 Composition	The Program Committee is a standing committee, composed of a chair, and such others as the board may direct.
931.2 Purpose	The Program Committee assists the branches in translating AAUW and AAUW California mission priorities into local branch programming by providing resources and direction. The Program Committee is also responsible for collaborating with the leadership team to develop, deliver and promote state-wide programs.
931.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of committee chairs.</li> <li>In addition, the Program Committee chair does the following: <ul> <li>Communicates with branches through all state communication channels, branch visits, district and Interbranch Council (IBC) meetings, and workshops.</li> <li>Works with branch leaders to identify areas of programming that are relevant to branch needs and AAUW priorities and suggests resources.</li> <li>Collaborates with the state leadership team and other committees to plan and deliver educational, instructional, or topical mission-based programs to branches and members via workshops, webinars, print materials, or other channels.</li> <li>Assists with obtaining appropriate speakers for state program presentations.</li> <li>Plans and coordinates workshops for the Annual Event in close consultation with other state committees.</li> <li>Tracks branch mission-based program activities through branch newsletters.</li> <li>Coordinates program-related activity between other state committees.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

931.4 Committee Member Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of committee members. In addition, Program Committee members will: <ul> <li>Actively seek relevant topics, speakers, materials, etc. for state and branch program presentations.</li> <li>Assist the chair with procurement of speakers or other resources for state and branch program presentations.</li> <li>Support state program presentations, including volunteering as needed and working as needed with Communications Committee on content, promotions and details for webinars, workshops, etc.</li> <li>Serve as a representative of the Program Committee and assist branches with ideas and resources for successful local programs.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Stay up to date on national AAUW activities that may translate to branch or state programs. Committee members assist the chair with meeting the purpose and</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>state and branch program presentations.</li> <li>Support state program presentations, including volunteering as needed and working as needed with Communications Committee on content, promotions and details for webinars, workshops, etc.</li> <li>Serve as a representative of the Program Committee and assist branches with ideas and resources for successful local programs.</li> <li>Stay up to date on national AAUW activities that may translate to branch or state</li> </ul>

## Policy 933 – Project Oversight Committee

(On hiatus as of July 2021, July 2022)

Note	See also Policy 103 - State Projects.
933.1 Composition	The Project Oversight Committee is a standing committee, composed of a chair and as many additional members considered necessary by the board. The chair and at least one other committee member must be a sitting director.
933.2 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of committee chairs.</li> <li>The Project Oversight committee chair: <ul> <li>Has overall responsibility for the committee's operation and assigns committee members to fulfill the duties of the committee.</li> <li>Provides regular updates to the board of directors or leadership team on the committee's activities and needs.</li> <li>Makes recommendations to the board, after committee review, to enact new state projects three months after receipt of an application.</li> <li>Prepares and monitors the annual committee budget.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
933.3 Committee Member Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of committee members. The Project Oversight committee members assist the committee chair to meet the committee's purpose and goals by: <ul> <li>Helping evaluate new state project proposals, consulting with the finance committee for fiscal impact, and other committees as appropriate, and making a recommendation to the chair to put forward to the board.</li> <li>Assisting in the development and execution of new projects, including working with the project coordinator to create policies and procedures for the project by the end of the first year of its operation.</li> <li>Conducting annual evaluations of current state projects, under the chair's guidance, including: <ul> <li>Evaluating projects' budgets before they are sent to the board for approval.</li> <li>Reviewing projects' policies and procedures to ensure practices are consistent across multiple delivery sites and consistent with state policy.</li> <li>Working with project coordinators to update policies and submit those amendments to the board for approval.</li> </ul> </li> </ul></li></ul>

933.4 Committee Annual Review	The Project Oversight Committee conducts an annual procedural and financial review of each project. The committee makes recommendations to the board on how to improve projects and if/when to discontinue projects.	
933.5 Review for Multiple Delivery Projects		A sampling of several of the sites selected rotated from year to year. Should include Reviewing the budget, actual income/expenses, and a sampling of deposits and vouchers.
	Procedural	Contacting a sampling of the participants and volunteers to ensure procedures were followed and all insurance, risk management, and legal requirements of a project are met.

## Policy 935 – Public Policy Committee

935.1 Composition	The Public Policy Committee is a standing committee composed of the chair, the president, and others as the board may direct. The committee tries to appoint members with backgrounds in reproductive rights, education/childcare, prevention of violence against women and families, gender equity in education, and other aspects of public policy relevant to AAUW California priorities.
935.2 Purpose	The Public Policy Committee acts as a resource to AAUW California and its branches, keeping them informed of national and state AAUW public policy, voter education programs and recommended actions. Communicates current public policy activities to branch public policy chairs, requesting local support as necessary.

935.5 Legislative Advocate - Responsibilities	<ul> <li>The legislative advocate is a paid consultant with the following responsibilities.</li> <li>The legislative advocate: <ul> <li>Represents AAUW California at legislative hearings and lobbies the public policy bill package.</li> <li>Works with legislators on issues within the state focused on public policy positions.</li> <li>Publishes and maintains the approved bill package on the AAUW California website.</li> <li>Uses the AAUW California Action Alert system and social media to inform and engage AAUW members and friends to participate in lobbying efforts.</li> <li>Acts as a consultant to the Public Policy Committee in the selection of bills on which to take positions.</li> <li>Attends and speaks at the state Annual Event and meetings.</li> <li>Works with advocates from other organizations that share similar mission, vision and public policy priorities.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
935.6 Coalitions - Reviews	The Public Policy Committee chair and one other Public Policy Committee member, selected by the chair, review coalition evaluations and present recommendations to the board for approval at the July board meeting.
935.7 Criteria for Evaluation	<ul> <li>The criteria for evaluation of coalition membership includes:</li> <li>Coalition goals consistent with AAUW's mission.</li> <li>Coalition effectiveness, viability, servicing a critical need, and potential for positive impact.</li> <li>Contribution to AAUW visibility.</li> <li>Commitment to regular participation.</li> </ul>
935.8 Coalition Representatives	<ul> <li>The president appoints a representative to each approved coalition, and the coalition representative will:</li> <li>Submit a written report, with agenda attached, to the Public Policy Committee chair after each meeting of the coalition.</li> <li>Submit a written coalition evaluation to the Public Policy Committee chair at the end of each fiscal year.</li> </ul>

	A line item in the AAUW California budget shall designate the total amount to be allocated for coalition dues for the year.
935.9 Branch Advocacy Bills – Condition for Bills Not on the AAUW California Priority List	<ul> <li>An AAUW California branch may support a bill not on the AAUW California list with the following conditions:</li> <li>The branch requests that the AAUW California Public Policy Committee chair reviews the bill for compliance with the approved AAUW California public policy priorities. This review will include the AAUW California Legislative</li> <li>Advocate's determination that there is no potential for adverse political ramifications or other such ramifications.</li> <li>If approved by the AAUW California Public Policy Committee chair, the branch may take a position in the name of the branch, e.g. The XYZ Branch of AAUW, but will not use the name of AAUW California.</li> </ul>

# Policy 937 – Speech Trek Committee

937.1 Composition 937.2 Purpose	Speech Trek is a state project under the jurisdiction of the AAUW California Board of Directors and consists of the Program Director, Speech Trek Treasurer and other committee members as assigned. Speech Trek is a statewide program to promote understanding and communication of gender-equity issues among high school students through their research, preparation, and presentation of high-quality speeches, while promoting the value of public speaking as a life and leadership skill.
937.3 Chair Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs.</li> <li>The Program Director is appointed by the AAUW California president and reports to the Board of Directors.</li> <li>The Program Director, in concert with her committee and the Board of Directors, oversees the project for all participating branches, including annual Branch and Student Toolkit updates, annual topic selection, selection of semifinals and finals judges, branch Memoranda of Understanding (MOU), project funding, and monthly Speech Trek articles.</li> <li>The Program Director serves as a key resource for branch Speech Trek committees throughout the state.</li> <li>The appointment is for a one year term of office running from July1 to June 30. Individuals holding this position may be reappointed for up to five one-year terms.</li> </ul>
937.4 Committee Member Duties	<ul> <li>See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members.</li> <li>The Speech Trek Treasurer is appointed by the AAUW California president and reports to the Program Director and the Board of Directors.</li> <li>The Treasurer is responsible for the financial oversight of the project and is the overall project treasurer.</li> <li>The Treasurer is the key contact for arranging travel and lodging for the three finalists, when the annual event is held in-person.</li> <li>The Treasurer contacts the top five state winners and arranges for their cash awards.</li> <li>Additional committee members perform duties as assigned.</li> </ul>

# Policy 939 - Tech Trek Committee

939.1 Composition	The Tech Trek Committee is a standing committee composed of a chair(s), who is the current Tech Trek Program Director(s), and as many
	additional members considered necessary by the board.
	The committee should be balanced and represent all constituencies, including but not limited to AAUW California branch members, branch coordinators, current and past camp leadership, board directors, and additional members as determined by the board.
939.2	See Policy 901.9 for general responsibilities of all committee chairs.
Chair Duties	In addition, the duties of the Tech Trek Committee chair(s) are to assign committee members to fulfill the duties of the committee. A suggested delegation of committee roles is below.
	The Tech Trek Program Director is the chair and individual ultimately responsible for overseeing the entire project. The Tech Trek Program Director is the primary spokesperson for Tech Trek California. The director:
	• Conducts state-level business relationships with affiliates engaged with the program (e.g. insurance carriers, corporate sponsors, agents for camp-related products (such as t-shirts and other swag), and attorneys.
	<ul> <li>Interfaces with national and state leadership to ensure California's compliance with current program policies and procedures.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Provides annual program risk evaluations/assessments and identifies mitigation strategies.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Communicates program, business, volunteer performance, and camp execution issues and other management concerns requiring leadership engagement to all constituencies.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Makes recommendations to the board to ensure the health of the program in the future (ie, structural changes to the program such as new staffing models, state growth requirements like new campuses, etc.)</li> </ul>
	Reviews and approves camp stipends.
	• Prepares and monitors the annual committee budget, if appropriate.

939.3 Committee	See Policy 901.10 for general responsibilities of all committee members.
Committee Member Duties	The duties of the members of the Tech Trek Committee are to provide assistance, guidance and support to meet committee goals through research, assessment and the gathering of resources for the Tech Trek program. This includes assisting with the following responsibilities:
	Camp Administration Coordination
	<ul> <li>Review, update, and distribute stakeholders' annual forms and materials related to administration of the program. This includes branch packets as well as camp forms.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Research and prepare camp-related incident reports for annual liability insurance meetings with CFO and insurance representative.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Collect participation and consent agreements, MOUs, and reservations from program stakeholders: participating branches, camp directors, treasurers and camp directors-in-training.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Coordinate camp assignments with the camp directors.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Prior to camp, review camp curricula, camp presenters, events, activities and schedules as provided by the camp directors.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Research and assess online document vendors and plan installation after approval by board.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Provide other duties as requested by the Tech Trek Committee chair, AAUW California president or AAUW California board.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Retain records according to the required minimums.</li> </ul>
	Training
	<ul> <li>Design and assist in the delivery of training for camp directors/treasurers and ensure assignments and training are in place for selected Camp Directors-in-Training.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Create training and provide support for branch coordinators.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Develop and assist in execution of the annual meeting agenda with focus on collaboration.</li> </ul>
	Staff Recruitment and Development
	<ul> <li>Solicit applicants and appropriate candidates for specific roles and recommend to director as necessary for the program.</li> <li>Solicit applicants and recommend new directors and treasurers when necessary to fill open positions or to replace personnel due to issues with job performance.</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>Tech Trek Communications to Branches, Members and External Audiences</li> <li>Update marketing materials periodically to ensure alignment with national and state requirements.</li> <li>Organize a Tech Trek presentation or workshop at the Annual Event in consultation with the event organizer.</li> <li>Develop content required for stakeholders and submit to the state communications team for review and distribution. (e.g. emails, Board to Board)</li> <li>Provide the state website team with timely content to keep the information current and relevant.</li> </ul>
939.3.1 Grants Clearing- house Coordinator	<ul> <li>The Grants Clearinghouse Coordinator seeks new funding opportunities and maintains a record of branches and grants so that multiple branches do not apply for funds from the same source. The coordinator will:</li> <li>Seek out new funding opportunities and facilitate the completion of the grant application.</li> <li>Notify Special Projects Fund (SPF) and the AAUW California CFO of their applications as they begin the application process. SPF will then provide the applicant with information relevant to the use of SPF as the fiduciary agent.</li> </ul>
939.3.2 Financial Liaison	<ul> <li>The Financial Liaison is appointed by the AAUW California president and works with the Tech Trek branch coordinator(s), SPF and the AAUW California CFO to manage the financial aspects of Tech Trek. The liaison will:</li> <li>Ensure fiduciary stewardship and compliance of the program via seasonal budget(s) development; provide oversight of camp budgets' adherence during camp seasons, including asset management; review and approve reimbursement vouchers; interface with SPF partners and when necessary, the CFO.</li> <li>Define required updates to program or camp-related financial processes with stakeholders and SPF.</li> <li>Gather and review the annual Tech Trek budget(s) prior to submission to the AAUW California board for approval. Attend board of directors and leadership team meeting(s) to answer questions as needed.</li> <li>Provide training to camp treasurers.</li> <li>Approve and forward camp vouchers to SPF for payment.</li> <li>Forward monthly camp financial reports received from SPF to each camp treasurer and director (upon request).</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>Facilitate use of the AAUW California California credit card with the CFO for camp-related transactions when necessary.</li> <li>Prepare multi-camp vouchers, i.e., insurance, administration fee, t-shirts, SWAG, and other printed supplies.</li> </ul>
939.3.3 Data and Evaluation Coordinator	<ul> <li>The Data and Evaluation Coordinator facilitates the compiling of camp data and evaluation. The coordinator will:</li> <li>Maintain the database of former campers, utilizing updates from branches and providing support when necessary.</li> <li>Oversee any long-term studies of campers that the board may request performed.</li> <li>Provide training and support to camp directors in creating and distributing surveys.</li> <li>Compile an after-camp report that utilizes data from all camps and can be sent to stakeholders.</li> </ul>
939.3.4 Social Media Coordinator	<ul> <li>The Social Media Coordinator facilitates the posting of social media messages across multiple platforms. The coordinator will:</li> <li>Collaborate with the AAUW California Social Media coordinator following AAUW California social media guidelines</li> <li>Post social media updates, particularly during the camp season, utilizing material from all camps.</li> </ul>
939.3.5 Alumnae Coordinator	<ul> <li>The Alumnae Coordinator interfaces with the former campers' alumnae groups throughout the state and provides support. The coordinator will:</li> <li>Perform duties to be described as the alumnae program is developed.</li> <li>Maintain alumni data to monitor camper engagement in future STEM activities.</li> </ul>
939.3.6 Technology Coordinator	<ul> <li>The Technology Coordinator assists in the management of technology for the project. The coordinator will:</li> <li>Maintain a master list of individual camp assets and coordinate sharing equipment.</li> <li>Communicate with the AAUW California webteam to keep online forms and materials up to date.</li> <li>Plan systematic updates to Tech Trek technology.</li> <li>Assist camp directors and branch coordinators with camp management software.</li> <li>Provide training on Google Docs and Drive and camp management software as necessary for new directors and treasurers.</li> </ul>

<b>-</b>	
939.3.7 Background Check Coordinator	<ul> <li>The Background Check Coordinator ("Live Scan") will:</li> <li>Be certified by the California Department of Justice as a receiver of confidential information</li> <li>Send camp directors forms and instructions each year in spring for both new and continuing staff.</li> <li>Maintain (with camp directors) camp lists of potential staff and volunteers.</li> <li>Advise camp directors of approvals.</li> <li>Pass an FBI background check.</li> <li>Process invoices for payment from background check provider for all returning staff/volunteers in a timely manner.</li> </ul>